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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
BETT

308,280

LOSS ATTRIBUTABLE BASIC LOSS
RE\VENUE TO THE OWNERS PER SHABE
I % BEA NG E 1R B B FEA 18
(HK$’000) (HK$'000) (HK cents)
(B¥TIT) (BT (B
40,000 TR 20,000 6
31,023 15,000 4
30,000 10,000 )
5,000 663 (738 (283
(1238 (24063  (12.491)
20,000
-5,000 2
10,000 -10,000 “
15,000 6
0 220,000 8
2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021 2019 2020 2021




AL (RE)ARAR - ZF - FFEH

Bt B5 1k

A summary of the results, and the assets and liabilities of the Group T AAEERBEREMBEE 2 248 -
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published XELBEHME  IEHFES B ZEEX
audited financial statements, is set out below. This summary does not  BFf§3R % « A B W FNEK S B 1S HE
form part of the audited financial statements. 21 e

Results oy

For the year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+-ALEE
2017 2018 2019 2020
2+ ZZ-\f —Z-hF C—Z-TH
(Re-presented)
(fE=5)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT A%Tr AT BT

N|
2

Revenue 1 28,390 26,350 31,023 35,348

(Loss)/Profit for the year FE(ER),/GH 11,024 (12,793) (21,780) (25,738)
Assets and Liabilities EERERE

As at 31 December
R+=B=+-H

2017 2018 2019 2020

2t —F\& ZE-NF —T-%TF

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000

BETT  AETr  BETr BETx

Total assets BEE 639,116 587,191 572,675 572,298

Total liabilities BEE (260,427)  (222,049)  (223,305)  (250,286)

Shareholders’ funds HERE S 378,689 365,142 349,370 322,012
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General Performance

For two years after the outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic, global
economy experienced recovery in 2021. But rebound has been
uneven across countries in midst of, amongst other factors, spread of
the Delta variant, ongoing geopolitical tensions, rising global inflation
as well as supply chain breakdowns and bottlenecks. In Hong Kong
where the Group’s core businesses operate, the pandemic situation
was well contained with local infections maintained at zero for much
of the second half of 2021. Although the border remained close for
the whole year, local sentiment in Hong Kong revived in 2021 amid
temporary relaxation of social distancing measures and government’s
Consumption Voucher Scheme. Both GDP and retail sales registered
a year on year growth of about 6.4% and 8% respectively from the low
base in 2020, yet these indicators were still behind pre-COVID level as
tourist spending had been missing entirely.

During the year under review, the Group’s net loss decreased by 44%
to approximately HK$14,312,000 after netting the effects for (i) the
fair value gain on investment properties of HK$900,000 in 2021 but
not in 2020; (i) unrealized RMB exchange gain of HK$3,095,000 in
the year under review decreased 44% compared to the same period
last year; (iii) fair value gain on financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss of HK$122,000 instead of fair value loss of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss at HK$12,813,000 in 2020;
(iv) decrease in finance costs of HK$2,001,000 compared to the
same period last year; (v) newly added impairment on right-of-use
assets of HK$3,383,000 in 2021 and (vi) decreased HK$1,923,000 of
government subsidies to HK$244,000 in 2021.

The Group’s revenue increased by approximately 3% to
HK$36,492,000 in 2021 as North Point guesthouse commencing
business in May 2020 came in its full year operation in 2021 which
had increased the segment’s revenue by about 33%. The positive
impact on the Group’s revenue would have been greater if it had
not been offsetted by the substantial revenue drop in the property
management segment.

ERERRA

COVID-19KRITBEEME + 2EREER
T —FREEEH R Hﬁ&%ﬁml
= BiEDeltaEEA - BENMEKBUAE
REE - 2ECEIRFR A K 4 FE 58 P T R
B ZENRBET 8 - NEBZLED
CIEFTERE S e MBBUBILERE -
MRERAEN T - —F TNEFRNByERE4%
BEKF BEEREREFRDETHER
AMEA RIS R NERBTREE
FErEHRT BEANAMBERN T = —
FEE BT _TFNEEMLE - A
SERERTEERLDAIERL6.4% K&
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& 1% ACOVIDRTHI K -

REBFA  NEBZMAER 4% ELHE
#14,312,0007C * BBEZE AT FEFZEHR
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900,0007C - ME-_Z_TFBIWEEL
(WA EREFE 2 RFIRAREEL RSB
3,095,000t * BEEF R AL B D 44% ¢ (i)
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AEEE122,0000 - MR ZZEZZFAIAZA
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AR =T = —FF DB %1,923,0007L &
#044,0007T °

REER T —FHWRAZ L% EE
36,492,0007t - AER —_ZE=-_FTFHAME
MILABEER T -_—F2HELE S%H
Ry U A NI 33% o fix I 8 4 5 B 3R 5 26
MU A KR TREFTICE - A AEERAR
FAFEERERKN -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other income decreased by 37% to HK$7,212,000. It is mainly due to
decrease in government subsidies of HK$1,923,000 and decrease in
accrued unrealized exchange gain on RMB deposits of HK$2,452,000
for the year under review. Finance costs decreased by HK$2,001,000
due to relatively low HIBOR interest rate during the year under review.
The administrative expenses were approximately kept at the same
level as last year after the Group’s various endeavours taken to rein
in cost included continuing freezing all payroll and discretionary
year-end bonus of staff and management alike to keep the Group’s
sustainability in the adverse economy.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s net asset value was
approximately HK$308,280,000 and net asset value per share
was approximately HK$0.95. The Group’s total assets and total
liabilities were approximately HK$547,198,000 and HK$238,918,000
respectively.

Property Investments Business

During the year under review, total rental income contributed
from Hong Kong and Macau investment properties amounted to
HK$4,303,000 increased by approximately 1% compared to last
year. Return from leasing the investment properties was about 5%
comparing the gross rental income and original cost of investments.
Valuation gain on the investment properties of HK$900,000 alleviated
the segment loss to HK$3,122,000 for the year under review.

There is no acquisition or disposal of investment properties during
the year under review. Total valuation of the investment properties
increased by HK$900,000 to HK$131,000,000.

In Hong Kong total rental income derived from the Group’s retail
shop in Sheung Wan and residential units in Taikoo Shing increased
approximately 12% to HK$1,476,000 with investment yield being
approximately 5% when compared gross rental income to original
cost of investment. The increased rental income was mainly due to
vacancy of a residential property for five months in the latter half of
2020 before a new tenancy commenced early in 2021.

AL (RE)ARAR - ZF - FFEH

RN &

EH U AR 37% &= E 7,212,000 E
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Rental income from Macau properties decreased approximately 4%
to HK$2,827,000. There are one residential unit and one office unit
which have been vacant since Q3 2020 and Q2 2021 respectively.
Rental income from Macau properties decreased mainly due to the
early termination of tenancy of an office unit in April 2021 irrespective
of the higher rental rate commanded from renewed lease of our office
investment properties as well as the predetermined rental increment
stated under the tenancy of our retail shop both of which took effect
during the year. An average yield of about 5% comparing the gross
rental income and original cost of investments on Macau properties
was recorded.

During the year the Group’s Hong Kong investment properties
attained full occupancy rate even though the general rental reversion
was negative on renewals, rent review and new lettings. In spite of
another year fraught with lingering coronavirus concerns, the local
residential market demonstrated its resilience and recorded a modest
price increase supported by continued limited supply, solid pent up
demand driven by local end users and prevailing low interest rate
environment. In the government’s latest budget, further relaxation
of the mortgage policy to ease the property value cap of the eligible
Loan-to-Value should further open up more home options in the
secondary home market. The Group will consider disposing some of
our non-core investment properties upon attractive offers to enhance
its investment portfolio.

As for Macau the occupancy rate of our investment properties
last year was less satisfactory. There is a residential unit, located
in downtown Macau in the proximity of luxury hotels and casino
resorts, which used to be a most sought after premises to lease
by gaming intermediaries, has been vacant for over a year with
diminishing market rental rate. Under the continued contracting
gaming VIP business since last year, the Group has been refocusing
our marketing efforts to target corporate tenants like the China based
banks that provide accommodation to their seconded staff that work
in our neighbourhood. Downward pressure on the occupancy and
rental rate is also expected as the tenancies of our office investment
properties will expire this year either for rental renewal or new
lettings. On the positive side, we anticipate a favourable prospect
for Macau’s future economic growth leading to appreciation of our
property investment in Macau from the master plan of development of
Guangdong-Macau-Intensive Cooperation zone in Henggin unveiled
in September 2021. The long term goal of the cooperation zone is
to establish a better collaboration mechanism between Henggiu and
Macau underlying which Macau can achieve a moderate economic
diversification from mostly relying on its gaming revenue.
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Hair Styling Business

Due to better control of the pandemic in second half of the year under
review, segment turnover increased 7% to HK$16,314,000 with net
loss increased to HK$108,000 compared to net loss of HK$22,000
the year before. Despite increase in revenue, increase in segment loss
was attributable to the combined effect of (i) the absence in 2021 of
the anti-epidemic government subsidies and (ii) decrease in rental
concession savings.

Service quality is the foundation of development and key to growth
in the business and professionalism of staff is key to service quality.
To ensure our service quality, we refine service standards, modernize
service tools as necessary to increase service efficiencies and offer
staff training as appropriate for latest hair beauty technology, service
techniques as well as in depth introduction of products. Under the
current COVID situation, especially after Omicron spread out in the
local community, the well being of our customers and staff is our
utmost priority. In February 2022 hair salon for the first time was
included as scheduled premises by the government and directed
to suspend operations for almost a month to curb the pandemic.
Possibility of another circuit breaker measures on the hair salon in
future cannot be ruled out. Meanwhile the Group strictly follows
government guidelines and implements various preventive and
control measures in force from time to time including vaccine pass
requirements for customers and vaccination and testing requirements
for employees.

Retail products sales decreased 13% to HK$728,000 compared
to the year before. While we work strenuously to tackle immediate
crisis, we remain focus on long term strategy to expand our product
sales. As online shopping has become part of daily lives for many
people nowadays, the Group will continue to expand our e-commerce
initiatives. With the subsidy granted from the Distance Business
(D-Biz) Programme, we are at the final stage of fine tuning details of
the brand new e-platform before launching it in the coming months.
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ARNEIBEREBERTEFSISRERS
Mo Ep R EB I N7 % = E ¥ 16,314,0007C
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Hospitality Service Business

Turnover of the segment increased 33% to HK$11,982,000 with
segment loss of HK$5,635,000. Increase in turnover was due to
full year operation in the year under review of hostel premises in
North Point commenced operation in May 2020. Decrease in rental
concessions and government subsidies during the year under review
and accounting treatment to address the impairment issue on right-
of-use assets of the North Point leased premises amounted to
HK$3,383,000 increased operation cost and resulted in increase in
segment loss of HK$3,766,000 compared with last year.

During the year COVID-19 pandemic and closure of borders
continued to adversely affect the business in the absence of the mass
market of Mainland and international travellers. To drive occupancy
and cash flow, we continued to shift our focus to the local market and
increased differentiated offerings of daycations, flexi-stay, extended
stay and co-living. Our two hostels posed average 90% occupancy
in 2021 compared with 85% occupancy in the year before whereas
average room rate dropped about 2% in between the two years.
Occupancy rates was satisfactory and comparable with peers as
we had adopted the most flexible pricing strategy making timely
adjustments on room tariffs to align with the changing market supply
and demand.

The pandemic is likely here to stay for some time and a reality in our
daily lives. The Group’s priority is to ensure the safety of customers,
employees and the community with strict adherence to the necessary
preventive and control measures and operation procedures applicable
to the industry. We strive to navigate the current headwinds in the
operating environment and as the saying goes there is always a
silver lining in the clouds. New trend emerges for use of hotels as
interim accommodation for those on the public rental housing waitlist
and over hundreds mainly smaller guesthouses of our size are on
the list. There are also schemes of different scale to be operated in
conjunction with NGOs. The Group has recently secured a two month
contract with a NGO to provide a fixed number of rooms for their
staff’s accommodation for short term.
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Over the past two years the pandemic has pushed many companies
over the technology tipping point and with the surge in automation,
digital adoption has taken a quantum leap across many industries
including the hospitality industry. Looking forward the Group will not
only allocate resources upgrading the hotel’s lobby/guesthouses
but also digital transforming for instances contactless check-in,
voice activation control systems, Al, data and customer analytics
which are growing in importance if we look to deliver a better guest
experience as customers become more demanding and experience
driven. At the same time Environmental, Social and Governance
initiatives are increasingly becoming a strategic priority for market
players to succeed in the industry. Initiatives like waste and energy
management, carbon impact and sustainable-sourcing will be
included in our implementation agenda.

Securities Investments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss of approximately HK$70,445,000 (31 December
2020: HK$69,946,000). The securities investments portfolio
comprised of Hong Kong blue chips and REITs with attractive yield on
dividend income and good liquidity. Dividend income from securities
investments amounted to HK$2,994,000 was recorded in the
reviewing year.

The Group recorded fair value gain of HK$122,000 on the securities
investments held for the year under review instead of fair value loss
of HK$12,813,000 the year before. We anticipate that when the
business environment in Hong Kong is restored and the present
epidemic comes under control, prices of the securities investments
will gradually reflect its intrinsic value. We are also inquiring with
banks for investment options in any of their quality financial
products of guaranteed principal with moderate return to leverage
on our securities investments on hand to enhance the segment’s
performance.
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The Group’s significant investments (i.e. investment with carrying
amount exceeding 5% of the total assets of the Group) held as at
31 December 2021 are as follows:

Company name/(stock code)

ARER/ (RORE)

Link Real Estate Investment Trust (828)
ERFEHEREERER(B)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Link Real Estate Investment Trust is a Hong Kong-based real estate investment
trust (REIT). The investment objectives of REIT are to deliver sustainable growth
and to create long-term value for its unit holders. It invests in a portfolio of
properties, including retail facilities, markets, car parks and offices in Hong
Kong, tier-one cities in Mainland China, London and Sydney. Its investment
properties include destination shopping centers in Hong Kong, community
shopping centers in Hong Kong, office and shopping malls in Beijing, Shanghai,
Guangzhou, Shenzhen, among others.

During the year 2021, it recorded a loss on disposal amounted to HK$588,000.

The Group will hold the investment for dividend income and to reduce the
investment when the unit price increases to a reasonable level.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property Project Management Business

During the year renovation on two projects of a residential unit and a
commercial unit was completed generating HK$881,000 total revenue
with segment loss of HK$91,000. As the economy revives, we
strive to expand the scale of the business segment by collaborating
with local renowned architect/interior designer to explore into new
projects. At the moment we are in negotiation with a local renowned
interior designer on collaboration terms. Not only is he one of the
most influential figure in the field of interior design, he is also known
for his eponymous brand of luxury lifestyle homeware products. In his
flagship store in Admiralty, it showcases the brand’s full collections of
furniture, textiles, lighting and tableware alongside with his latest new
work design. Should the collaboration materialized, it would definitely
add vitalities to the business segment.

Other Business Segments

During the year under review, Money lending business recorded
turnover of HK$6,000 and segment loss was HK$10,000. We expect
operation in this segment to be minimal and customers served are
normally on referral basis with careful consideration to credit risk
exposure.
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Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a cash and bank
balance including pledged bank deposits of HK$108,585,000
and net current liabilities of HK$38,117,000. The current ratio
(calculated as the current assets to the current liabilities) of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 0.83 (31
December 2020: 0.87).

The sales and purchase of the Group are mainly denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars. But the Group has substantial amount
of Renminbi deposits on hand which is exposed to fluctuations
on Renminbi exchange rates. The Directors consider that in the
long run the Renminbi exchange rate will be stable.

During the year, certain property, plant and equipment, certain
investment properties and certain bank deposits of the Group
were pledged to two banks to secure the bank borrowing
of approximately HK$201,783,000, which is denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and bearing interest at floating rate. The
Group did not have significant contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2021 (31 December 2020: Nil). There is no capital
commitments as at 31 December 2021 (31 December 2020:
Nil).

Capital Structure of the Group

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had total equity of
HK$308,280,000, fixed rate liability of HK$9,815,000, floating
rate liability of HK$201,783,000 and interest-free liabilities of
HK$27,320,000, representing 3%, 65% and 9% of the Group’s
total equity, respectively. The gearing ratio (calculated as the
total long term loan to the total shareholders’ equity) of the
Group as at 31 December 2021 was approximately 3% (31
December 2020: 6%).
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Significant Investments, material Acquisition and
Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had not
made any significant investments or material acquisition or
disposal.

Employment Information

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed approximately
a total of 48 employees (2020: 47). The Group’s emoluments
policies are formulated on the performance of individual
employee and are competitive in the market. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, total staff costs (excluding
Directors’ emoluments) amounted to approximately
HK$12,512,000 (2020: HK$11,396,000).

Final Dividend
The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

Dividend Policy

When considering the declaration and payment of dividends,
the Board needs to consider potential opportunities and risks
existing in the Company’s operation and development as
well as assess various factors, regardless of whether they
are financial or operational, internal or external, in the past or
the future, microeconomic or macroeconomic. The payment
of dividends will be made at the discretion of the Board.
The Board may decide the frequency of dividend payment
and further declare or recommend any special distributions.
Dividends may be declared or paid by way of cash or scrip
or by other means that the Board considers appropriate.
The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance with
applicable laws and regulations including the laws of Bermuda
and the Company’s Bye-laws. The Board will conduct
supervision and review from time to time and there can be no
assurance that dividend will be paid in any particular amount
for any given period. The Board shall discuss amendments to
this policy when necessary.
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In Q4 2021, the highly transmissible COVID-19 variant, Omicron,
emerged and spread worldwide. New infection cases have peaked
in many countries amid people’s increasing vaccination rates and
vaccine boosters launched by various countries. As times goes by
some western countries today have taken the policy to “live with
virus” by easing its strict COVID related restrictions in an attempt to
revive its local economy. Nevertheless on the road to global economic
recovery, volatilities and uncertainties remain heightened in the near
to mid term on the pandemic’s lingering effects, continued Sino-US
tension and the ongoing Russo-Ukrainian War. While it is still yet early
to gauge the impact that Russia’s Ukraine incursion has on global
macro economy, economists envisage that 1H 2022 is likely to see
high inflation rate and low economic growth. The unprecedented
sanctions levied on Russia by various US led major economies have
not as anticipated slowed down the tightening monetary policies of
United States to fight inflation with interest rate hikes as the Federal
Reserve announced in March 2022 its first interest rate hike of 0.25%
since 2018 and indicated more hikes are coming in the remaining
year. As the Russian-Ukraine conflict evolves, there are growing
concerns of its impact on stability of global finance, energy supplies,
transportation and supply chains. Hong Kong where the Group’s core
businesses operate, is an external oriented economy inevitably would
be impacted to a greater or lesser extent by the multiplying ripple
effect by such a global phenomenon.

Since December last year onslaught of the Omicron infections in
Hong Kong has dealt a heavy blow and overwhelmed the city’s
capacity to deal with the pandemic as daily cases surged to record
high for over a month. Other than boosting the city’s vaccination
rates, the HKSAR government has imposed tougher social-distancing
measures to combat the pandemic. All local economic activities
have been halted with renewed pressure on retail market sentiment
and disruptions on the reopening plan of the Mainland border. On
a positive note, while the government is focusing all resources to
fight the pandemic, the Mainland government is also rendering Hong
Kong its full support providing for anti-epidemic products including
Chinese medicine, ensuring ceaseless food supply chain across the
border, constructing within a time constraint mobile cabin hospitals/
isolation facilities and sending in medical professionals to help to
treat COVID infected patients who could not have been promptly
attended due to manpower shortage. At the same time the Chief
Executive Officer had just announced that Hong Kong would lift a ban
on flights from nine countries and reduce quarantine periods effective
1 April 2022 alongside a roadmap easing social restrictions in three
phases starting 20 April 2022 but with emphasis the roadmap would
be subject to change. These are all favourable factors towards life
returning to normal but all the same we expect the operation of our
local hotels will still face headwinds this year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Despite against a backdrop comprising rising geopolitical tensions,
winding down of quantitative easing with increasing interest rate as
well as the threat of vaccine evading COVID-19 variants, Mainland
China’s growth could be better than expected in 2022 underpinned
by amongst others (i) the country’s dual-circulation development
strategy and (ii) exports to stay strong in 2022 from demand of
some major economies which have started to revive their economic
activities. In addition to increasing demand in Renminbi from
increasing international trade and hot money chasing comparatively
attractive returns on Chinese government bonds, the giving up by
Russian fuel company “Gazprorn Neft” in September 2021 USD
and accept Renminbi as settlement currency has also boosted the
Renminbi demand. Renminbi has soared more than 8% in 2021
according to China Foreign Exchange Trade System Renminbi index
that tracks the yuen’s performance against 24 other currencies. The
appreciation of Renminbi would benefit the Group in the perspective
of its substantial amount of Renminbi bank deposits held for interest
income and long term capital gain in value. Considering China’s
strong desire to reduce its reliance on USD for trading and transaction
with global counterparties, it is generally expected that the currency’s
strength and stability will remain a core policy focus for the Chinese
government during this period and beyond. Some analysts anticipate
that the currency’s strong performance could continue in 2022 and
the Group will be on the lookout to capitalize on the opportunity to
convert our Renminbi on hand to reap the exchange gain.

Unquestionable the pandemic situation still dominates the global
economic outlook and the lack of Mainland and international visitors
will continue to weigh on the Group’s hospitality business. Although
widely believed that global tourism will resume gradually with
increasing vaccination rates across the globe that herd immunity will
come into effect, it is still a long road to full recovery of the hospitality
industry. With Omicron yet to be contained in Hong Kong, the Group
will continue to put on hold projects which it explored and identified
to add to our hospitality service operation portfolio. Nonetheless
seeing beyond the current situation, we recognize the longer term
potential of Hong Kong’s hospitality industry. Hong Kong is unique in
terms of business and leisure with its strategic location and business
environment as a key conduit for Mainland China and the wider
international business communities. Recently the Group has procured
a standby banking facilities to provide additional funding capability
and flexibility for our existing hotel hardware enhancement and future
expansion as the opportunities and timing come. Major infrastructure,
commercial and leisure initiatives like the new third runway at HKIA,
West Kowloon Cultural District, opening of Water World Ocean Park
etc add to elevate Hong Kong’s position as a global city and benefit
the hospitality industry. While the Group endeavours to sustain its
performance in Hong Kong, it will also continue to seek for potential
hotel operations in Hong Kong’s neighbouring cities to reduce the risk
of the Group relying on a single geographical market.
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The Group always strives for being an outstanding member of the
communities in the territories it operates, Hong Kong and Macau.
As such, each year the management would set targets to achieve
goals of community care and environment protection by actively
participating in various social services. In the future the Group shall
continue to seek innovative and meaningful ways to engage its
employees and associates in building stronger and more vibrant
communities.

During the year 2021, the Group was honoured with the following
awards:

- “Caring Company” by the Hong Kong Council of Social
Services for 14 years in succession

- “Good MPF Employer” by Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Authority for 7 years in succession

- “Manpower Developer” by the Employee Retraining Board
in “Manpower Developer Award Scheme” for 3 consecutive
sessions

- “Social Capital Builder” award by the Hong Kong Productivity
Council for 3 continuous sessions

- “Hong Kong Green Organization” accredited by Environmental
Campaign Committee since January 2018

- accredited as “Happy Company” (organized by Hong Kong
Promoting Happiness Index Foundation) since May 2020
and have committed to develop corporate caring, wisdom,
toughness and motivation so as to provide a happy workplace
for staff

- Hong Kong Awards Environment Excellence (SEMs)
by Environmental Campaign Committee for pursuit of
environmental initiative and participative since 2019

The Group is always firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and a
more detailed Environmental, Social and Governance Report of our
activities during the year will be posted in our company’s website
later.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements. The analysis of the principal
activities and geographical locations of the operations are set out in
note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of affairs of the Group and the Company at that date are set
out in the financial statements on pages 61 to 178.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in respect
of the financial year ended 31 December 2021.

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion and
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year and the material
factors underlying its results and financial position are provided in
management discussion and analysis from pages 6 to 18 of this
annual report. Description of the principal risks and uncertainties
facing the Company can be found throughout this Annual Report.
Particulars of important events affecting the Company that have
occurred since the end of the financial year 2021, if any, can also be
found in the abovementioned sections and the Notes to the Financial
Statements. The outlook of the Company’s business is discussed
throughout this Annual Report including in management discussion
and analysis from pages 6 to 18 of this Annual Report.

During the year, the Group has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the operations of the
Company.
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Remuneration packages are generally structured with reference
to prevailing market terms and individual qualifications. Salaries
and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors like the business
performance of the Company and the annual inflation rate in Hong
Kong. Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits
including mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and
performance related bonus.

Customer relationship plays a very important role in the operation of
the company. The Company fully understands this principal and thus
maintains close relationship with the customers with a watchful eye
for service improvement to fulfill their immediate and long-term need.

Due to the nature of the business, the Company didn’t have any major
supplier that has significant influence on the operations. However, the
Company had always maintained fair and co-operating relationship
with the suppliers.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
businesses and the communities with which it engages. We pursue
this business approach by managing our business prudently and
executing management decisions with due care and attention.

The Group is also committed to acting in an environmentally
responsible manner. Recycling use of eco-friendly stationery, plus
strenuous efforts to save paper and energy in office, resulted in more
efficient use of resources, as well as reduction of waste.

The Group remains firmly committed to operating as a socially-
responsible company across all of its business operations and
disclosing Environmental, Social and Governance Report during the
year.

FHEFE—REB2ERTHEEARBAEE
HE - FEMRTE-RESBFRERRTHG
REMBBRZERE  MARRRBRE R
FEBFBIRE - BREFERI - ARASEH
ETHEMN eReEs BRERBREER
R ERTEAL

BEPBARDEBZRA  ARBRBUR
A - HEeREPRFEEIEEK  TEHER
REERBEARECEE TRRERZFE -

EREBZIME  ARARTETMHEZE
BERFEZIEHER HARR—EHH
HERERQTFRAEZREE -

AEBBRNEFREXRGEAELEZ REA
FTEER - RMAFELEER REHIH
MITEIRE - AHEBILRBER o

AEBEAGURFRTATE - BREBAR
RIXCE - WE N B ET & AR MM R E L
R NERE AR M BERASIRDIRE -

AEE-HEERETHMB IR EAEGEEBRE
P EEE RABRREARERE e

MERRE -



There was no movement in the Company’s authorised share capital
and no share option was granted under the Company’s share option
scheme as approved by the shareholders of the Company at the
annual general meeting held on 30 May 2019 (“Scheme”) during the
year under review. Details of the Company’s share capital and details
of the Scheme are set out in notes 28 and 29 respectively to the
financial statements.

Summary of the Scheme

1.

The purpose of the Scheme is to reward Participants (as
defined below) who have contributed to the Group and/or to
enable the Group to recruit and retain high-calibre employees
and attract human resources that are valuable to the Group
and any invested entity and/or to encourage Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as
a whole.

The Participants of the Scheme to whom Option(s) may
be granted by the Board shall include Directors (including
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and independent
non-executive Directors) and employees of the Group and any
advisors, consultants, professional or service providers of any
member of the Group who the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the Group.

Total number of ordinary shares of HK$0.2 each in the capital
of the Company available for issue under the Scheme as at the
date of this annual report is 29,347,742 Shares. Percentage of
the issued share capital that it represents as at the date of this
annual report is 9%.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible Participant under the
Scheme must not to exceed 1% of the Shares in issue in any
12-month period unless approved by shareholders of the
Company.

The Shares under an Option must be taken within 10 years
from the date on which the Option is offered or such shorter
period as the Board may determine.
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6. There is no minimum period for which an Option must be held
before it can be exercised unless otherwise determined by the
Board.

7. Price payable on application or acceptance of the Option is

HK$1.00. The payments or calls must or may be made in 28
days after the offer date of an Option. There are no terms on
the period within which loans for the purposes of the payments
or calls must be repaid.

8. The exercise price shall be determined by the Board and
notified to each grantee and shall not be less than the highest
of: (a) the closing price of a Share as stated in The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheet on
the date of grant of the relevant Option, which must be a
business day; (b) an amount equivalent to the average closing
price of a Share as stated in The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited’s daily quotations sheets for the 5 business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the relevant Option;
and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

9. The remaining life of the Scheme is 7 years (expiring on 29 May
2029).

Details of Share Options Granted

Details of the share options granted to the Directors are set out in
the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures
of the Company or any of its Associated Corporation”. There is no
movement on share options during the year 2021.
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The following table discloses the Company’s share options held by THRBER -_Z-—FEFKXN  AAAHEE
each of the Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company % - AR FTERERALNFEEREIRE
and the employees of the Company granted under the Scheme during  :Z=H 2R 2 BEIE -

the year 2021:

Number of share options
BREHE
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise at Granted  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled at
priceper ~ 1January  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe  duringthe 31 December
Name of participant Date of grant Validity period Share HK$ 2021 year2021  year2021  year 2021 year 2021
(Note)
R=%=
Ba W=8z-F RNZBz-F WNZBZ-F H-R--f
SEERE REEH BHE fiftf ERRF R ERXH ERg HAGE
(Hyt)
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Syvia 14 September 14 September 2016 to 3,096,000 3,096,000
Director and substantial 2016 13 September 2026
shareholder of the Z3-7ENR “3-ENRTEAZ
Company TIE ZEINENATER
iz 19 September 19 September 2017 to 3,096,000 3,096,000
EZRALTEERR 2017 18 September 2027
ZEEAR ZE-LEAATARE
A ZECHEAATIR
3 Qctober 2018 3 October 2018 1o 3,096,000 3,096,000

ZE-VETAZR 2 0ctober 2028
“F-\F+AzRE

B )\ETAZA
16 October 2019 16 October 2019 to } 3,260,000 3,260,000
Z5-NATA 15 October 2029
! Z3-NEHRTAE
ZECNETATRA
Total 12,548,000 12,548,000

Note:  The closing prices per share immediately before 14 September 2016, 19 Mgy : BEE-_ZT-—XEALA+EHA  —Z2—+EFNA

September 2017, 3 October2018 and 16 October 2019 (the date on which the +hB - N\Ft+A=Z=BE=-Z—-hAE+A

share options were granted) were HK$0.73, HK$0.69, HK$0.395 and HK$0.25 TRB(BIREERESE B AERKTES A

respectively. #0737 + B #0.697T © A H0.3957T KB
0.257T °

All outstanding share options were exercisable as at 31 December Z#HEKITHEBERENR_-_ZT_—F+_A
2021, =+—HA{TfE -
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At 31 December 2021, the distributable reserves of the Company
available for distribution as dividend amounted to HK$46,141,000
represented by the contributed surplus of HK$213,978,000 after
compensating the accumulated losses of HK$167,837,000. Under
the Bermuda Companies Act, the contributed surplus shall not be
distributed to the shareholders if there are reasonable grounds for
believing that:

(i) the Company is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay
its liabilities as they become due; or

(if) the realisable value of the Company’s assets would thereby be
less than the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued capital
and share premium accounts.

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Company during
the year are set out on page 65 and in note 32 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group are
set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the Group’s investment properties are set out on page 179
to page 180.

The total borrowings of the Group as at 31 December 2021
amounted to HK$201,783,000 (2020: HK$204,371,000). Particulars
of borrowings are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year is
HK$25,000 (2020: HK$14,000).

R-E-—F+_A=+—8 AQa 0k
% B 5K 2 AT 5 K 7 {5 28 % 46,141,000
T BVAEER A% EE213,978,000 LK E R
sHE1EE 167,837,000 L4 15 - IRIEE R
FEANRE WEEAEKREREUATER
BIESABT B DK TRRE

(i) ARBVEDZFRATREENEREL
BHER ¢ K

(i) ARBEEZAZREBEEBINER
EERDBITRARRMRER AN -

AEBRARBDRNFREZFHEHEEBHHNF65
H R ARE M MARMEES2 o

AEBZME  BMELRRBEHFEHENE
EMBEMERMEE4 -

AEBZIEEYEEHFIBHNGZEE T H R
KWFE15 - REEKEMEZE—TFEHR
RE179E 1808 ©

AEFBR-_E-_—F+-_A=1+—HMIET
BB AE 201,783,000 (2 - F
& B ¥204,371,0007T) © EEFBERLE
AP BHREME26 -

AEBEERFEELHZEZ NEMBRRE
#25,0007C(ZZE=F4F : B¥14,00070) °



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 5.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of the Senior Management as at the date of
this Report are set out on page 31 of the Annual Report.

The Group regards the executive directors and the heads of functional
departments as members of the senior management team.

The emoluments paid or payable to members of senior management
team were within the following bands:

g g () FRAF - —F - —FEEHR

DIRECTORS’ REPORT * # I & it 45

LA A 5 17

AEENBEREAYRFEZXEAREE
REBEMEHNFELH

IR
RAREAH  ERBERERABNBEER
RAEFHESIE -

REBMERTEERBEIFTEERSRE
BEKKE -

BENEREBABZHSHENT
Number of individuals

2020
—E-EF

Emolument bands B < 5 [

Nil — HK$1,000,000 L Z=#%1,000,000T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 751,000,001 702 4 #2,000,0007T
HK$2,000,001 — HK$3,000,000 7% 2,000,001 7T =% 3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 — HK$4,000,000 78 #£3,000,001 7T =% 4,000,0007C
HK$4,000,001 — HK$5,000,000 754,000,001 702 #5,000,0007T
HK$5,000,001 — HK$6,000,000 755,000,001 7T =7 %6,000,0007T
HK$6,000,001 — HK$7,000,000 756,000,001 7T 28 %7,000,0007T
HK$7,000,001 — HK$8,000,000 78 #87,000,001 T 2% #8,000,0007T
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The five major customers of the Group were attributable to the
property investments business. The five major suppliers of the Group
were attributable to hair styling. The percentages of the sales and
purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s major customers
and suppliers are as follows:

Sales

— the largest customer 4%
— five largest customers combined 12%
Purchases

— the largest supplier 38%
— five largest suppliers combined 87%

At no time during the year, Directors, their associates or any
shareholder (which, to the knowledge of the Directors, owns more
than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had any interest in these
major customers or suppliers.

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws and there was no restriction against such rights under the
laws of Bermuda.

The Company has not redeemed any of its shares during the year.
Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased or sold
any of the Company’s shares during the year.

AEBOIAREFBWERERY - A5ER
AMEBABEN R RBEERS - AREZ
TZREFPREEREEAFE ZHERLK
BEASLWT

HEX

—&AEF 4%
—AUHEAEFER 12%
—mARF 38%
—AUGRARFAE 87%

REREMER  SBF  REZBEARX
EARR(BRESAANEES AR RBRAS%
AEZBRR)BENZETEEPREEDS
PEA (L fa et

ARRAATEBERNEEIEZAT  MaR
ERPIINEE BB TR -

ARBNEAALEBOARGETABRD - NA
AREENBARNFANTERBELHER
RAER LD o



The Directors during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Mr. HUI Yan Kit

Mr. LAU Pui Wing

Ms. Ho Ting Mei

In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s bye-laws, at each
annual general meeting, one-third of the Directors for the time being
shall retire from office by rotation. Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Mr.
Lau Pui Wing shall retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer themselves for
re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in regards to their independence
to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock exchange. The Company considers
that each of the independent non-executive Directors is independent
to the Company.

Each of the Executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with the Company which runs for an initial term of two years and
will be renewable for successive terms of one year until terminated
by either party by giving to the other not less than six months prior
written notice.

Each of the Independent Non-Executive Directors has entered into
a service agreement with the Company for a fixed term for one year
until terminated by either party by giving to the other not less than one
month prior written notice.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the company has a service contract/letter of
appointment with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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Details of the changes in directors’ emoluments during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements of this report.

Save as disclosed in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements,
no other transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, any of its
subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or holding companies was a party
and in which a Director of the Company or an entity connected with a
Director is or was materially interested, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

None of Directors, the substantial shareholders of the Company and
any of their respective close associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete, either directly or indirectly, with
the business of the Group or has any other conflict of interests with
the Group during the year under review which are required to be
disclosed under the Listing Rules.

At no time during the year and up to the date of this report, there was
no permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit of any
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise).

HE-_T-—F+-A=+—HILEENE
EEHFBHINRAREGA P HBHRE
BEE13 ©
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Executive Directors:

Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, aged 48, brother of the Company’s
Executive Director, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, was appointed
as Executive Director and Executive Chairman in 1999 and 2004
respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s strategic planning,
business development and general management. Mr. Tsang is a
director of ST (79) Investment Limited (“ST (79) Investment”) and
Barsmark Investments Limited (“Barsmark”), substantial shareholders
of the Company, and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited,
the holding company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Prior to joining the Group, he had gained broad experience working
with international firms in building construction, hotel management,
financing and strategic investment.

Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia, aged 47, sister of the Company’s
Executive Chairman, Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, was appointed as
Executive Director in 2010. She is now responsible for the sales and
leasing in the property investments business segment of the Group, in
particular the residential sector. Ms. Tsang is also a director of ST (79)
Investment and Barsmark, substantial shareholders of the Company
and a director of ST Investments Holding Limited, the holding
company of ST (79) Investment and Barsmark.

Ms. TSANG received her tertiary education in Canada and holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Economics. Before joining the Group, Ms. Tsang
worked in a retail business responsible for its operation, sales and
marketing and had over 11 years experience in the field.

Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, aged 64, joined the Group in 1999
and was appointed as Executive Director in 2001. Besides overseeing
the Group’s Finance and Human Resources & Corporate Affairs
departments, she is also responsible for all legal matters of the Group.

Ms. CHU received her tertiary education in Canada. Prior to joining
the Group, she had more than 12 years of experience working in the
financial field of various commercial enterprises both in Hong Kong
and Canada.
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Independent Non-executive Directors:

Mr. HUI Yan Kit, aged 48, was appointed as an Independent Non-
executive Director in 2004. Before joining the Group, Mr. HUI had
more than 8 years experience in sales and marketing both in Hong
Kong and China. He is currently a general manager of an international
corporation engaged in plastic material manufacturing and trading.

Mr. LAU Pui Wing, aged 52, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2017. He is a practicing certified public
accountant in Hong Kong and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and also an associate of the Hong
Kong Institution of Certified Public Accountants, The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute and the Taxation Institute of Hong
Kong. He now runs a professional accountancy firm and has over 20
years of experience in accounting, auditing, taxation and corporate
finance.

Ms. HO Ting Mei, aged 47, was appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director in 2020. She received her tertiary education
in United States and holds a Bachelor of Science Degree majoring
in marketing. Ms. HO has solid experience in both conventional
and digital marketing, business development, corporate relations
and digital media. Being an entrepreneur, her business covers
brand development as well as strategic and tactical marketing
with innovative concepts for corporates, products or services;
establishment of global distributing network and in addition, public
relation and corporate communication to source and build an
extensive network including government agencies and NGOs and
collaborate business opportunities across different industries on new
project or campaign development.
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Senior Management

Mr. KWOK Tsz Kit, aged 46, became a director of the Company’s
subsidiaries in December 2019 in operation of the Group’s newly
developed hospitality business. Mr. KWOK, founder of “HOMY”
budget hotel chain, is a pioneer in budget hotel segment of the
hospitality industry with comprehensive knowledge and market
sensitivity. He has been appointed by the HKSAR Home Affairs
Department to become a member of the Advisory Panel on Licensing
of Hotels and Guesthouses for 2020 to 2022 representing the hotels
and guesthouses industry. As a director of Hong Kong Association of
Hostels, Mr. KWOK committed to foster the long term development
of the guesthouse industry and often stands up to voice out to the
respective authorities expressing collective views on government
policies relevant to the industry as well as its practitioners.

Mr. KWOK oversees the Group’s hospitality business operation and
development.

Ms. Sze Tak On, aged 52, was appointed as Financial Controller
and Company Secretary in 2004. Ms. Sze holds a Master degree in
Corporate Finance. She is an associate member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of
The Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and The Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms. Sze has over 28 years
of experience in accounting, auditing and finance mostly working with
public companies listed in Hong Kong. Ms. Sze is responsible for
the financial and accounting matters of the Group as well as listing
compliance issues of the Company.

Ms. Wong Yim Tsui Amy, aged 60, joined the Group in 1999 and
was promoted Vice President of Human Resources & Corporate
Affairs in 2005. She is tertiary educated in The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University and has been admitted member to Hong Kong Institute of
Human Resources Management since 1991. Ms. Wong has over 30
years’ human resources experience in various industries including
finance, retail and servicing and is responsible for the Group’s human
resources management to cope with corporate planning for business
development.
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As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of each
of the Directors and Chief Executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFQO”)) which (i) were required
to be notified to the Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they are
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii)
were recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 352
of the SFO; or (iii) have to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to the Model Code contained in the Listing Rules
were as follows:
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() Interests in shares and underlying shares of the (i) REQXTRDREERDZER
Company
Name of company Number of Approximate
in which ordinary Ordinary percentage
shares/securities shares/ of total
Name of Director Nature of interests are held securities held shareholding
REFBREZER FBEZER/ HARREZHD
ESHE EatE RBHEZARER EHEHE BA
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 5.93%
BRELE corporation (Note 1 and 3)
REthEEER Pi/NE] 19,329,195 5.93%
(BFEE1 R3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 27.07%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
EEEEEER VNN 88,275,577 27.07%
(HfEE2K3)
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia Beneficial interests The Company 3,064,000 0.94%
LRt EnEn /NG 3,064,000 0.94%
Interest of controlled The Company 19,329,195 5.93%
corporation (Note 1 and 3)
EEEEERE S ZAN/NG] 19,329,195 5.93%
(BIEE1 R3)
Interest of controlled The Company 88,275,577 27.07%
corporation (Note 2 & 3)
REHhEEER P /NE] 88,275,577 27.07%
(K=E2%3)
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania  Beneficial interests The Company 8,930,087 2.74%

KAELZ LT Btk PIN/NG] 8,930,087 2.74%



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2021

DIRECTORS’ REPORT ° i & € ) &

Notes:

1. These shares were beneficially owned by Barsmark Investments
Limited.

2. These shares were beneficially owned by ST (79) Investment Limited.

3. The issued share capital of Barsmark Investments Limited and ST

(79) Investment Limited are both wholly and beneficially owned by
ST Investments Holding Limited (“ST Investments”), the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned to one-third by each of Fortune
Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued capital of which is vested
in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-administrators of
the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching), Conba Investments Limited (a
company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel)
and Ssky Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially
owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia). Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel
and Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia are directors of Barsmark Investments
Limited, ST (79) Investment Limited and ST Investments. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel is a director of Conba Investments Limited. Ms.
TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia is a director of Ssky Investments Limited.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors and Chief Executive
(including their spouse and children under 18 years of age) of
the Company had any interests or short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV the SFO) which would
have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Division 7 & 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which were required, pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code contained in the
Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

e

1. It % B 1 B Barsmark Investments
Limited B w1 A °

2. IR B ST (79) Investment Limited &
=R -

3. Barsmark Investments Limited ST (79)
Investment Limited 2 B % 17 i& AN ¥9 |
ST Investments Holding Limited ( [ ST
Investments ]) & & E#z#H ° Fortune
Ocean Limited(— B FF 8B 2+ &
BMELTUEBBECEELAREEA
MEMNERZAR  EEHNEBITRA
BERTBELTRFTBSZAL) &
EREERAA(—HBAEBREES
EE @B 22 F))KRSsky Investments
Limited (—fA B EBHL T2 EEHHE
BZAR)EBEE@BEAST Investments
=R —ZBEITRA - EBRITE
K% & B 158 22 & & Barsmark Investments
Limited * ST (79) Investment Limited &
ST Investments 2 &% - BRRR L4 B
BHEHEGEERDARZES - BMHixt
Bl &Ssky Investments Limited 2 &2 -

BRIALWBEEIN  RIFES RHEERAIFEXV
ME7TR8DHAME AR E LR (BER
BESLAEGROIZBRBIEXEEFREEX
BRERZRDIAR)  IRBESFMPE
Bl £ 352k M AL SKN BELM « HRE £
MRS 2R ETAANE AND R RBER
B ARARIZREFEREZTHRAB(BRERE
ZEBRISHA T Z FR)MER AR R HE
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(ii) Interests in the Share options of the Company

Name of Director/
Chief Executive
EE TETBAR
®E

Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen
Sylvia
LRI+

Date of grant of

share options

RiLEEERD

14 September
2016

—E-RFNA
+HA

19 September
2017

—E—tFNA
+B

3 October 2018

“F-N\FHAZ

H

16 October 2019

—ZT-NF+A
+5H

Exercisable period

T

14 September 2016 to
13 September 2026
—T-XENATHAE

—=

“EoRFAAT=H

19 September 2017 to
18 September 2027
“E—t+HEAATAEE

—ZZt+FNATNR

3 October 2018 to
2 October 2028
—E-NF+HA=ZHEZ
T N\E+HZH

16 October 2019 to
15 October 2029
“E-NF+ATAEZE
ZZZNE+HATAA

AL (SR ARAF

DIRECTORS' REPORT

SRR

cE 8 ST

(i) REQXFTBREZEDS

Exercise
price per

Share (HK$)

BRITEE
(B%)

0.732

0.732

0.698

0.698

0.395

0.395

0.25

0.25

Number

of options
outstanding
i) RAT L RS
REHE

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,096,000

3,260,000

3,260,000

Approximate
percentage of

shareholding in

the Company

CESNG) Y

BABDH

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

0.95%

1.00%

1.00%
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The register of substantial shareholders maintained under Section
336 of the SFO shows that as at 31 December 2021, the Company
had been notified of the following substantial shareholders’ interests
and short positions, being 5% or more of the Company’s issued
share capital. These interests are in addition to those in respect of the

Directors and Chief Executives as disclosed above.

Long position in shares

Name

nE/EB

Barsmark Investments Limited (Note 1)
Barsmark Investments Limited (KfzE1)

ST (79) Investment Limited (Note 1)
ST (79) Investment Limited (PfsE1)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Note 1)

ST Investments Holding Limited (Ff{zE1)

Conba Investments Limited (Note 1)

BERBEARAA(MET)

Ssky Investments Limited (Note 1)

Ssky Investments Limited (Hf3E1)

Nature of interests

BEME

Beneficial Interest
Entn

Beneficial Interest

ER AL dE s
BEnfEn

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E R

Interest of controlled
corporation
SEGEE RS

Interest of controlled
corporation

R AR

R-B-_—F+-_A=+—08 HBEZEHEK
HEIEFIEIB6IEMBREZEBRBEELM
BRARNFIEEEFAE ARG B BITRAS%
TN EZETEREES AR ZBHNT
HEES DU ERBEZEERTETHRAE
TREZ AN o

R ZHFE
Approximate

Number of percentage of
shares held total shareholding

iR HEEREZ
19,329,195 5.93%
19,329,195 5.93%
88,275,577 27.07%
88,275,577 27.07%
107,604,772 33%
(Note 2)
107,604,772 33%
GE)
107,604,772 33%
(Note 2)
107,604,772 33%
GEH)
107,604,772 33%
(Note 2)
107,604,772 33%

(Mf&E2)



Name

nE/EB

Fortune Ocean Limited (Note 1)

Fortune Ocean Limited (Ht5E1)

Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi (Note 3)
B Lt RFrEe Lt (HEE3)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited

(Note 4)

Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited

(Pl 7E4)

Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto Investments Holdings Limited (Bt z54)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Note 4)
Szeto International Holdings Limited (Fff74)

Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin (Note 4)

At EEL L (HE4)

Nature of interests

REME

Interest of controlled
corporation
R EE R

Beneficial Interest

EnEn

Interest of controlled
corporation

A EE R

Beneficial interest

e

EmlE

BK

Interest of controlled
corporation
XEGEEER

Interest of controlled
corporation
A E R

Interest of controlled
corporation
TS EEE S

AL (RE)ARAR - ZF - FFEH
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Number of
shares held

iR &

107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
(PH%E2)
784,125
784,125
107,604,772
(Note 2)
107,604,772
UE#
50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

50,996,250

Approximate
percentage of
total shareholding

EREREZ

33%
33%
0.24%
0.24%

33%

33%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%

15.64%
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Notes:

1. Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited are both wholly
and beneficially owned by ST Investments Holding Limited, the issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned as to one-third by each of (i) Conba
Investments Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel); (i) Fortune Ocean Limited (a company the entire issued
capital of which is vested in Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi as co-
administrators of the estate of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching); and (i) Ssky Investments
Limited (a company wholly and beneficially owned by Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen
Sylvia).

2. These shares represent the aggregate number of shares beneficially owned by
Barsmark Investments Limited and ST (79) Investment Limited.

3. Ms. HUI Win Si Cici and Ms. HUI Wun Gi are co-administrators of the estate
of Mr. TSANG Chiu Ching, whose beneficial interest and interest of controlled
corporation in shares of the Company are entirely vested in co-administrators.

4. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement) Limited is wholly-owned by Szeto
Investments Holdings Limited, the issued share capital of which is wholly-
owned by Szeto International Holdings Limited. Ms. SZETO Yuk Lin is wholly
and beneficially interested in the entire issued share capital of Szeto International
Holdings Limited

Save as disclosed above, no other person other than the Directors or
Chief Executives of the Company had interests or short positions in
the Shares or underlying shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

Details of the related party transactions for the year under review are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. None of
these related party transactions constitutes connected transaction or
continuing connected transaction which is required to be disclosed
under the Listing Rules. The Directors confirm that the Company
has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

e

1. Barsmark Investments Limited & ST (79)
Investment Limited¥3 B3 ST Investments Holding
Limited2 B E&=#A + MESETRADBIA()
SHEHREBRAD(—HHBEBRLETEER
#A Z /A7) ;5 (i) Fortune Ocean Limited (— &
HFBRER AT RFBE R T ASBBTEEEHR
REBANSNERZAR @ HE2HEBHTRA
EBEBNTREB L L RFBE 2+) o i) Ssky
Investments Limited(—fEHEBHL L2 E T
BEZRANEREE=D 2w °

2. It % % 19 #8 Barsmark Investments Limited &
ST(79) Investment Limited Z 25 % B 2 % {7 4258 -

3. HEEREIRFEZRETREBREEEEZ
REEA  MERAR ﬂHx@EPZEm%ﬁ&”
LHEER G BEENAREERA -

MR /tt

4. Szeto Investments Holdings (Amusement)
LimitedJ5#Szeto Investments Holdings Limited
2EHEE - HB BT A Szeto International
Holdings Limited2 & #4H - At FEX L2 EE
%5 A Szeto International Holdings LimitedZ &
HEEITRA -

BRIAEPTIRESN - BIEBEMA L (ARRES
ﬁ?ftﬁl,w_ﬁ@%)ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ M EBEGRDIE
3BIHEARRATFELZ aEHﬂWFﬁEEﬁ’ZZHx
AR P EAEEIAR -

CEFEAN  ARAEALRGHBHERER
M HMRMESS - ZFBEEALRZHA
BRARBELEMRAMEEBRENBER SN
FERERD EFEWRARFAENA LT
HRAIE1AAT 2 REBRTE o



Other than the service contracts of the Directors, no contracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into or
existed during the year.

The Company has complied throughout the year with the code
provisions same as disclosed in the Corporate Governance Report
and most of the recommended best practices in the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices as set out in the Listing Rules
except for certain areas of non-compliance that are discussed in the
Corporate Governance Report.

The written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties
of the Audit Committee were prepared and adopted with reference to
“A Guide for The Formation of An Audit Committee” published by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

The Audit Committee provides an important link between the Board
of Directors and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within
the scope of the Group audit. It also reviews the effectiveness of the
external audit and of internal controls and risk evaluation. The Audit
Committee comprises three Independent Non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. LAU Pui Wing and Ms. HO Ting Mei. Two
meetings were held during the current financial year. Audit Committee
had met with the management of the Company and the auditors to
review the final results, considered the significant accounting policies,
and discussed with the management matters relating to the Group’s
internal audit and internal control system. The Group’s consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
reviewed and approved by the Audit Committee.
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From information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s total issued
share capital are held by the public at all times during the year.

BDO Limited has acted as auditor of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021. A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company to re-appoint BDO Limited as
auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
Executive Director

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022

BEAAGAFREBZENEREESEF
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The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of corporate
governance practices and business ethics in the firm belief that they
are essential for maintaining and promoting investors’ confidence and
maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews its corporate
governance practices from time to time in order to meet the rising
expectations of stakeholders and comply with increasingly stringent
regulatory requirements, and to fulfill its commitment to excellence in
corporate governance.

Throughout the year of 2021, the Company has complied with all
Code Provisions in the Code of Corporate Governance Practices (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(the “Listing Rules”) except for certain areas of non-compliance that
are discussed below.

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the Shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.

The Board lays down corporate strategies, approves overall business
plans and, on behalf of the shareholders, supervises the Company’s
financial performance, its management and organization. The Board is
also responsible for overseeing the preparation of financial statements
of each financial period, which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs the Group and of the results and cash flow of that period. The
Board defines the scope within which the management team carries
out day-to-day management tasks. Each of executive directors
oversees specific areas of our business. The Board is also responsible
for developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices on
corporate governance duties as defined under the CG Code.

The Board determines the Company’s overall objectives, strategies
and business plans based on the recommendations of the
management team and approves the key figures underlying the
budgets prepared by the management team.

The Board reviews and approves the Company’s budgets and
checks to see if the targets are being achieved. It also monitors the
Company'’s liquidity and cash positioning. It approves the Company’s
significant transactions.

The Board and management team handle material price sensitive
information with strict confidence. Public announcements are made in
a timely manner to keep shareholders and the public abreast with the
latest developments.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Board comprises six Directors, three
of them are women, half of the Directors are non-executive and
independent of management, thereby promoting critical review
and control of the management process. The Board is collectively
responsible for promoting the success of the Company by directing
and supervising the Company’s affairs. The Board has a balance of
skill and experience appropriate for the requirements of the Group’s
businesses. Three of the Directors are executive, namely Mr. TSANG
Chiu Mo Samuel, Executive Chairman, Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia
and Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania, and three of the Directors are
independent non-executive, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Mr. Lau Pui
Wing and Ms. Ho Ting Mei. Each of Directors’ respective biographical
details is set out in the “Biographical Details of Directors” of this
annual report. It is the opinion of the Directors that the Board has
the necessary skills and experience appropriate for discharging their
duties as Directors in the best interest of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all time
met the minimum requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors,
and complied with the requirement that these should include one such
director with appropriate professional qualifications of accounting or
related financial management expertise. Mr. Lau Pui Wing has the
appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters required. Pursuant to the requirement in the Listing Rules,
the Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors of his/her independence to the
Company.
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The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately
quarterly intervals to discuss the Group’s business development,
operation and financial performance. Notice of at least 14 days
is given to all Directors for all regular Board meetings to give all
Directors an opportunity to attend. All regular Board meetings adhere
to a formal agenda in which a schedule of matters is addressed to
the Board. All Directors have access to board paper and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information which
enables the Board to make an informed decision on the matters to
be discussed and considered at the Board meetings. Minutes of
Board meetings are kept by the Company Secretary and are open
for inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any
Director.

To facilitate the decision-making process, the Directors are free to
have access to the management for enquiries and to obtain further
information, when required and the Directors can obtain independent
professional advice at the Company’s expense.

To the best knowledge of the Company, there is no financial,
business, family relationship among the members of the Board
except that Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is a brother of Ms. TSANG
Chiu Yuen Sylvia. Each of Directors also does not have any direct or
indirect material relationship with the Group.

No insurance coverage has been purchased for any of the Directors
as the Board does not foresee any contingent liabilities against the
Group.
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During the year ended 31 December 2021, 4 Board meetings have RHEHEZE-_Z_-_—F+_A=+—HI-FE -
been held. Details of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: ExeRTresz s=2HBEEFLOT

Number of Board meeting attended/
Number of Board meeting held
HEESEEBRY FETHESEERRY
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee

g ENERES REZEE FHEEE

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel WIER L

(Chairman and the (FRFEITBAEE)

Chief Executive Officer) 4/4 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia SRR £ 4/4 0/0 0/0 0/0
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KREAELZ+ 4/4 0/0 1/1 1/1
Independent BUHHITEE

Non-Executive Directors
Mr. HUI Yan Kit AL E 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1
Mr. LAU Pui Wing P 4/4 2/2 0/0 0/0
Ms. Ho Ting Mei A iEZt 4/4 2/2 1/1 1/1

During the year, the Company convened 1 general meetingon 28 May RAFE @ ARaR_ZE-—FHA -+ /N
2021 which was the annual general meeting of the Company. Details HZAF—ARE KRS - BIA QA 2 REBF
of the attendance of the Directors are as follows: Rg  EFRFHBOT

Number of meeting attended/
Number of meeting held

HESERY FETHEERY

Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel LR ST

(Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) (FEFITHAAER) 11
Ms. TSANG Chiu Yuen Sylvia =Rt 11
Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania KAAEZ T 1/1

Independent Non-Executive Directors BUHBITEE

Mr. HUI Yan Kit A& 0/1
Mr. LAU Pui Wing B mesdE 1/1

Ms. Ho Ting Mei (BESY Ehequn 11
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According to the code provision C1.4 of the CG code, all directors
should participate in a programme of continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to
ensure that their contribution to the board remains informed and
relevant. The Company should be responsible for arranging and
funding training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles,
functions and duties of the Directors of the Company.

During the year and up to the date of this report, the Company
provided to all Directors related articles on regulatory updates,
management skills and corporate governance from The Journal of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute, Hong Kong Institution
of Certified Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and materials from The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited website. Each of the Directors had noted and
studied the above mentioned documents and that the Company
had received from Directors the confirmations on taking continuous
professional training.

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company for an initial fixed term of 2 years and will continue
thereafter unless and until terminated by either party giving not less
than six months’ prior notice in writing to the other. All Directors are
subject to retirement from office by the rotation at each annual general
meeting as required by the bye-laws of the Company (“Bye-laws”).

Service contracts have been entered between the Company with each
of the independent non-executive Directors providing, amongst other
things, their term of offices for a period of one year until terminated
by either party giving not less than one month’s prior notice in writing
to the other. Moreover, they would also be subject to retirement by
rotation at each annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, all Directors are subject to
retirement by rotation and re-election at annual general meetings of
the Company. Directors appointed by the Board during the year are
required to retire and submit themselves for re-election at the first
general meeting immediately following their appointments. Further,
at each annual general meeting, one-third of Directors, or, if their
number is not a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not
less than one-third are required to retire from office.
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Each newly appointed Director is provided with a package of
orientation materials setting out the duties and responsibilities of
Directors under the Listing Rules, related ordinances and relevant
regulatory requirements of Hong Kong. Orientation meeting with
newly appointed Director would be held for briefing on business and
operations of the Company.

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
of the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made specific enquiry with
all Directors, the Company confirmed that all the Directors have
complied with the required standard of dealings set out in the Model
Code throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

The CG Code stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separate and should not be performed
by the same person. Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel is the Executive
Chairman of the Company and no Chief Executive Officer has been
appointed. The responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer have been
carried out by Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel. The Board believes that
it is in the best interest of the Company and the shareholders as a
whole for Mr. TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel, who is knowledgeable in the
business of the Group and possesses the essential leadership skills to
guide discussions of the Board in an effective manner, to continue to
carry out the responsibilities of Chief Executive Officer, which ensures
on the effectiveness and efficiency of the decision making process of
the Board.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with a written terms of reference which are available from
the Company Secretary at any time. The terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee include making recommendations for all
appointment, re-designation and re-appointment of Directors to
the Board. As at 31 December 2021, the Nomination Committee
comprises of three members, two of whom are independent non-
executive directors, namely Ms. HO Ting Mei, Mr. HUI Yan Kit and one
is executive director, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania. Ms. HO Ting
Mei is the Chairman of the Committee.
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Board Diversity Policy

The Board adopted board diversity policy (the “Board Diversity
Policy”). The Company recognizes and embraces the benefits of
diversity of Board members. While all Board appointments will
continue to be made on a merit basis, the Company will ensure
that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, experience (professional or otherwise), skills
and knowledge.

The Nomination Committee is also responsible for determining the
independence of each Director and conducting formal assessment of
the effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of each
Director to the effectiveness of the Board. In evaluating the Board’s
performance, the Nomination Committee considers a number of
factors, including those set out in the CG Code.

The Nomination Committee meets at least once a year. During the
year, the Nomination Committee has held one meeting, to review
the structure, size and composition (including the skills, knowledge
and experience) of the existing Board members of the Company to
enhance the effectiveness of the Board to run the business of the
Group steadlily.

The attendance of each member of the Nomination Committee, on
named basis and by category at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors will retire
from office at the Company’s annual general meeting. In accordance
with Bye-law 87(1) of the Bye-laws, Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and
Mr. Lau Pui Wing will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election.

Nomination Policy

The Board adopted a nomination policy. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate, select and recommend candidate(s) to the Board by
giving due consideration to the criteria, including but not limited to
Board diversity, qualifications, experience, independence, reputation
for integrity and potential contributions that the individual(s) can
bring to the Board before making recommendation to the Board. The
Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems appropriate
in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as referrals from
existing Directors, advertising, recommendations from a third party
agency firm, and may evaluate the suitability of the candidate(s) by
interviews, background checks etc.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 16 September
2005 with written terms of reference no less exacting terms than the
CG Code. The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
available from the Company Secretary at any time. As at 31 December
2021, the Remuneration Committee comprises two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. HUI Yan Kit, Ms. HO Ting Mei and one
executive Director, Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania. Mr. HUI Yan Kit is
the Chairman of the Committee.

The duties of the Remuneration Committee includes making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy and
structure of the Directors and senior management, reviewing and
approving the management’s remuneration proposals, making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual Executive Directors and senior management, approving
the compensation payable to Directors and senior management on
termination or dismissal to ensure they are consistent with contractual
terms and also ensure that no Director was involved in deciding his/
her own remuneration. Remuneration package for executive Directors
are as follows:

1. The remuneration for the executive Directors comprises basic
salary and pensions.

2. Salaries are reviewed annually. Salary increases are made
where the Remuneration Committee believes that adjustments
are appropriate to reflect performance, contribution, increased
responsibilities and/or by reference to market/sector trends.

3. In addition to basic salary, executive Directors and employees
of the Company and its subsidiaries are eligible to receive a
discretionary bonus taking into consideration factors such
as market conditions as well as corporate and individual
performances.

4, Details of the amount of Directors’ emoluments during the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13
to the consolidated financial statements in this annual report.
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The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up on the
basis of their merit, qualifications and competence. The emoluments
of the Directors are determined with reference to the Company’s
operating results, individual performance and the prevailing market
rates.

The Remuneration Committee meets at least once a year. During
the year, the Remuneration Committee has held one meeting to
review the existing remuneration packages of Directors and senior
managements of the Company, and to recommend the remuneration
packages for Directors of the Company. The recommended
remuneration packages have been approved by the entire Board.

The attendance of each member of the Remuneration Committee, on
named basis and by category, at committee meetings during the year
is set out in the section “Board Practices” of this report above.

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee was established on 28 December 2015 with
written terms of reference setting out the duties and responsibilities.
The Executive Committee consists of five members, namely, Mr.
TSANG Chiu Mo Samuel (Executive Chairman), Ms. TSANG Chiu
Yuen Sylvia (Executive Director), Ms. CHU Ming Tak Evans Tania
(Executive Director), Ms. SZE Tak On (Financial Controller) and
Ms. WONG Yim Tsui Amy (Vice President of Human Resources &
Corporate Affairs). The Executive Committee shall normally meet on
a monthly basis and in any event no less than quarterly. Mr. TSANG
Chiu Ho Samuel is the Chairman of the Committee.

For more efficient operation of the Board, the Executive Committee
was established mainly (i) to make recommendations to the Board on
the strategic aims, objectives and risk management of the Company;
and (ii) to consider and approve matters relating to the day-to-day
operations of the Group.
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The Executive Committee was also delegated by the Board to perform
the corporate governance functions set out in Code Provision A.2.1
of the CG Code including (i) to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance and make
recommendations to the Board; (ii) to review and monitor the training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iii) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory requirements; (iv)
to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance
manual applicable to employees and Directors; and (v) to review the
Company’s compliance with the code and disclosure in the corporate
governance report.

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established with written terms of reference
which are available from the Company Secretary at any time. The
Audit Committee currently comprises of three members, all of whom
are independent non-executive Directors. As at 31 December 2021,
the members are Mr. Lau Pui Wing (the Chairman of the Committee),
Mr. HUI Yan Kit and Ms. HO Ting Mei all of whom are not involved in
the day-to-day management of the Company.

The Audit Committee convenes meetings at least twice a year.
The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the Company’s
financial information (including the Company’s financial statements,
annual reports, interim reports and major comments on financial
reporting contained in the financial statements and reports),
reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of the Company’s financial
reporting system, risk management and internal control systems
and associated procedures, and making recommendations to the
Board on matters regarding the appointment of external auditors and
auditing fee etc.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held two meetings,
during which the annual report for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the interim report for the six months ended 30 June 2021
were reviewed. Please refer to the table set out in the section “Board
Practices” of this report for the attendance record of individual
Audit Committee members. All these meetings were convened in
accordance with the Bye-laws.
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Save as disclosed above, the Audit Committee has reviewed the
audited financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that BDO
Limited, Certified Public Accountants (“BDO”), be nominated for re-
appointment as external auditor of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting of the Company.

The Companies Ordinance requires the Directors to prepare financial
statements for each financial year that give a true and fair view of the
Company’s state of affairs as at the end of the financial year and of
its profit or loss for the year then ended. In preparing the financial
statements, the Directors are required to:

° select suitable accounting policies and apply them on a
consistent basis, making judgements and estimates that are
prudent, fair and reasonable;

° state the reasons for any significant departure from the relevant
accounting standards; and

° prepare the financial statements on a going concern basis,
unless it is not appropriate to presume that the Company will
continue in business for the foreseeable future.

The Directors are responsible for keeping proper accounting records,
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company, BDO, about
their reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group
is set out in the Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 55 to 60.
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AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION
BDO have been appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2021 by shareholders at the annual
general meeting and they will hold office until the conclusion of the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company. The annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021 have been
audited by BDO.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, BDO, the external auditor of
the Group, provided the following services to the Group:
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2021 2020
—E-—F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT BT T

630 600

Audit services ZE RS
Non-audit services FENZER TS
Total: A&t

600

The Audit Committee reviews each year a letter from the external
auditor confirming their independence and objectivity and holds
meetings with BDO to discuss the scope of their audit.
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The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group and ensuring review of the effectiveness of
these systems has been conducted annually. The internal control
systems are designed to meet the Group’s particular needs and the
risks to which it is exposed, and by their nature can only provide
reasonable, but not absolute assurance against misstatement or loss.

Procedures have been set up for safeguarding assets against
unauthorized use or disposition, controlling over capital expenditure,
maintaining proper accounting records and ensuring the reliability
of financial information used for business and publication. Qualified
management throughout the Group maintains and monitors the
internal control systems on an ongoing basis.

The Board has engaged a consultant company to conduct internal
audit function in order to review the effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems during the year and is of
the view that the systems of risk management and internal control
adopted for the year ended 31 December 2021 were assessed to
be satisfactory and were functioning properly, to a large extent, in
safeguarding the assets employed by the Group.

An inside information escalation policy is in place and sets out the
principles and internal control procedures for guiding our Directors
and relevant employees on the handling and dissemination of inside
information in a timely manner and in adherence to the relevant laws
and regulations. The policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time in view of, among others, relevant legal and regulatory
updates.

Ms. Sze Tak On was appointed as the Financial Controller and
Company Secretary of the Company. She is also an Authorised
Representative of the Company. The biographical details of Ms.
Sze are set out on page 31 under the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management”. According to rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, Ms. Sze took no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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In order to develop and maintain a continuing investors’ relationship
with the Company’s shareholders, the Company has established
various channels of communications with its shareholders such
as publication of interim and annual reports, press release and
announcement of the latest development of the Company in a timely
manner. The annual general meeting provides an opportunity for
shareholders to exchange views with the Board. The Chairman as
well as Chairmen of different Committees are available to answer
shareholders’ questions. Moreover, resolutions are proposed
at annual general meeting on each substantially separate issue,
including the election of individual Directors. In addition, details of the
poll voting procedures and the rights of shareholders to demand a poll
are included in the circular to shareholders despatched together with
the annual report. Details of the proposed resolutions are also set out
in the circular.

In accordance with the Bye-laws, any shareholder holding not less
than one-tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company carrying the
right of voting at a general meeting shall have the right, by written
requisition served to the Board or the Company Secretary, to require
a special general meeting to be convened by the Board for transaction
of any business specified in such requisition. Any vote of shareholders
at a general meeting must be taken by poll. The chairman of meeting
will explain the poll voting procedures at the relevant general meeting.

The website of the Group (www.clh.com.hk) is also updated
constantly to inform investors and the general public of the latest
information of the Group.

Constitutional Documents
The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional
document during the year under review.
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Tel : +852 2218 8288
Fax: +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

|IBDO

EiE - +852 2218 8288
{858 : +852 2815 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of Century Legend (Holdings) Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Century
Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 61 to 178, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December
2021, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion thereon, we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Valuation of investment properties
(Refer to notes 3.8, 4(a) and 15 in the consolidated financial
statements)

Management estimated the fair value of the Group’s investment
properties to be HK$131,000,000 at 31 December 2021.

Independent external valuations were obtained for all the investment
properties to support management’s estimates. The valuations
are dependent on certain key assumptions that require significant
management judgment, including recent market information
about prices for comparable properties with potentially significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.

Our procedures in relation to management’s valuation of investment
properties included:

- evaluating the independent external valuers’ competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

- assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of key assumptions based on our knowledge of the property
industry; and

- checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy and relevance of
the input data used and the resultant calculations.

AREZEFEARBEESNEXAE - RA
HBAMRASEMBBREANEZR/EENSE
He BENERERGAVBRREEMS
EZEERUTERER  MAEGREEFERE
BERRER -

BEWMEMGE
(ZAR s & I TS TR R MI7E3.8 ~ 4(a) &2 15)

EEEME BEEEZREVER_-F
T F+TZA=FT-HZAFEARBEE
131,000,0007T ©
PIEREMED DG BIIINESEE U
SEEEB A  HEDRARETEIER
FMZERIAFTEEERBFHERSH
B BERERALBEYEERZOCHTEE
B ERRERZEUILEDEE E5E
MEZRZBEEREFHBEERRE -

ZENEREBHREDEZHEMKERZE
Frefa .

- FEBLINBEEMZER - EH K
HEM

- REEFUMERITERZIRE - FER
RAZTEREERZRZAENE &

- HERETARAEABERZERER
MERAME - ARFTSRTEER ©



The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

The directors are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the directors in
discharging their responsibility in this regard.
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Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely to you, as
a body, in accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

- identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error; design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks; and, obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

- obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

- evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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- conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

- evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

- obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Leung Tze Wai
Practising Certificate Number PO6158

Hong Kong, 30 March 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

A A A T I iR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 * #ZE —E——4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

2021 2020
—E-—F —TFLE
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 BETT ST IT
Revenue Iy &5 5(a) 36,492 35,348
Cost of revenue L&D ®N (23,700) (23,092)
Gross profit EF 12,792 12,256
Other income HAunug A 5(b) 7,212 11,426
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets at &AL {EzT ABZE 2 B 7%
fair value through profit or loss BEZAFEK
(EE) 122 (12,813)
Fair value gain on investment properties &Y 2 AP EWKZ 15 900 -
Administrative expenses TR X (29,136) (28,898)
Impairment loss on right-of-use assets FREEE ZREEE 14(c) (3,383) -
Finance costs BB AR 7 (3,317) (5,318)
Loss before income tax BRET1S BRI ES 18 8 (14,810) (23,347)
Income tax credit/(expense) Frisfise, (Fx) 9 498 (2,391)
Loss for the year EEEEFR (14,312) (25,738)
Other comprehensive income Hazmul A
Item that will not be reclassified HESTEEF T BZ
subsequently EmZ2EE
to profit or loss:
Changes in fair value of EAFEFFAHMEERA
equity instruments at fair value through ZIRARTEZ A EEE
other comprehensive income (1,620)
Other comprehensive income for AEEHMEEEA
the year (1,620)
Total comprehensive income for AEEZHEBALE
the year (13,732) (27,358)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

AR A A A iR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 « & - ZE - —4#+_-A=+—HIF/Z

2021
—E_—F
Note HK$’000
FfaE BT T
Loss for the year attributable to: UTEEEGERFERSSE
Owners of the Company KABEE A (12,491)
Non-controlling interests JEFRRR i (1,821)
(14,312)
Total comprehensive income for UTEEEREREERZEK
the year attributable to: AN#EE -
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEDN (11,911)
Non-controlling interests SRR = (1,821)
(13,732)
HK cents
b1l
Loss per share BREE 10
Basic HAK (3.83)
Diluted e (3.83)

2020
—E-THF
HK$’000
BT T

(24,063)
(1,675)

(25,738)

(25,683)
(1,675)

(27,358)

HK cents
AL
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A e B AR UL R

as at 31 December 2021 » R-FE_——4#+_H=+—H

2021 2020
—E-—F —ZE=F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i BT T BETIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - R NERE 14 226,446 240,742
Investment properties KREYE 15 131,000 130,100
Financial assets at fair value through other &2 F{EzF AE A 2 EUA
comprehensive income ZHBEE 16 5,026 4,446
Deferred tax assets BT IBEE 27 558 -
363,030 375,288
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 17 139 83
Financial assets at fair value through profit &2 FEzF ABzZR 2
or loss R EE 18 70,445 69,946
Trade and other receivables, deposits and &% &k EMEIIER - &e
prepayments SSEENE/ L 19 4,989 8,177
Amount due from non-controlling interest &Y JE125 A% #E 25 218 20 10 10
Pledged bank deposits EHERRITIF R 21 80,989 92,469
Cash and bank balances W& RIRITHEER 22 27,596 26,325
184,168 197,010
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables = ET IR 23 259 189
Other payables and accruals E b e BR R FERT 08 5,263 5,289
Amount due to a shareholder FET—Z IR FIE 24 15,000 15,000
Contract liabilities AHEE 25 86 45
Amount due to non-controlling interest FEAH IEFE B R 2 TR 20 = 2
Lease liabilities HEAE 33(a) 8,024 8,935
Bank borrowings (secured) wITIEE(BEMF) 26 193,653 195,806
222,285 225,266
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (38,117) (28,256)
Total assets less current liabilities BEERRBERS 324,913 347,032
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A e I B AR UL R

as at 31 December 2021 « R-FE-—#+1+—-F=+—H

2021 2020
—E-— —E-THF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
i BT T BT T
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Lease liabilities HERE 33(a) 1,791 9,803
Bank borrowings (secured) RITIEE(BEM) 26 8,130 8,565
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEEF 27 6,712 6,652
16,633 25,020
Net assets EEFHE 308,280 322,012
EQUITY s
Share capital R 2 28 65,215 65,215
Reserves HiE 32 242,718 254,629
Equity attributable to the owners of NATHEE AELIER
the Company 307,933 319,844
Non-controlling interests FEER 347 2,168
Total equity AR 308,280 322,012
On behalf of the directors REEE
Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania
g RER KREAE
Director Director

EBEF EE



g g () FRAF - —F - —FEEHR

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
AR o BE 4R B SR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 * #ZE —E——4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

ANTREARLRS
Financial
assets at
fair value
through
other
comprehensive Share Non-
Share Share Capital  Revaluation income option  Accumulated controlling
capital premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* losses* Total interests Total
RAVE
AL
2EUAZ
s RtE Exif EffRR  DBEEER  BRERE ZithE g FEREE it
(Note 32a) (ot 32b)  (Note32c)  (Note32(d)
(Wifsop)  (Witsaw)  (Mitdew)  (Kieisa)
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$ 000 HK$ 000 HK$'000 HKS'000
BT BT BRI AETT AT I AT BETT BT eI
At1 January 2020 RZE-EE-5- 05,21 168221 146,189 846 3% 3,10 28,096) 345,607 3843 349,370
Loss for he yeer KERER - - - - - - (24,089 (24,069 (1679 [25739)
Other comprehensive income EUETTON
- Changes i far value of equiy nstruments — ~ AT BT AE(HAE
at fair value through other comprehensie. WA ZBRATAZ
income LTER - - - - (1620) - - (1,620 - (1620)
Totel comprehensive income for the yeer — TEF2EUALE - - - - (1,620) - (24,089) (25,689) (1,675) 27.359)
Transter of financialassets atfair value through Rt ERATER A M2 E
other comprehensive income reseve upon A RAT AR
the disposal of equiy Instruments at fairvave ~ EATEFARMEE
through other comprehensive income KGR HEE - - - - (379 - 35 . - -
At 31 December 2020 W-E-2E+-f=1-A 65,215 168,227 146,189 846 (1,959) 3,110 (51,784) 319,844 2,168 32012
At1 January 2021 RZB=-E-F- 158,221 146,189 (1,959) (51,784) 319,044 AL 322,012
Loss for the year TEEBR - - - (12,491) (12,491) (1,821) (14,312)
Other comprehensive income EUESTON
- Changes n fairvalue of equity nstuments — —BAT{ET AR (2

at fair value through other comprefensive

income

L\ZBATA
1¥820

Total comprehensive income for the year

TERRENNER

At 31 December 2021

i 2l o

*

168,227

146,189

846

580

580

(1379

The total balances of these equity accounts at the end of reporting period *
represent “Reserves” in the consolidated statement of financial position.

RMER - WERRRZ AR
REANZ [FH] -

(12,491)

(64,279

580

[t191)

307,933

(1,821)

31

580

(13,732)

308,280

B R
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2021 « & - ZE - —4#+_-A=+—HIF/Z

Cash flows from operating activities

Loss before income tax

Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Fair value gain on investment properties
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss

Bank interest income

Dividend income from listed investments

Finance costs

Gain on write-back of amount due to

non-controlling interest

Impairment loss on right-of-use assets

Write-off of property, plant and
equipment
Gain on disposal of property,

Note
B s
REEBRELECHSRE
B ET1S B AT E 18

AT SBIELFHE
WE - BEREETE
14

FRABEEENE 14
WEYEZ R ERE 15
BAFERT ABETS

BEZRNTFE

(Wezx),/ E18
RITHEHA
RKELEHREZREWA
BhE AN
[0 fE 1~ JE IR AR A 2 TR

2 e
FRAEEERBERBE 14(c)

HEME - BEM&E

plant and equipment 2 Wz
Operating loss before working capital NEEEESEFHA 2
changes K EBIE
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEUGM R
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets BAFETABRZ

at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease/(increase) in trade and other
receivables, deposits and prepayments

Increase in trade payables,
other payables and accruals

Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities

FsEEGEM), R
EEREMBWIER - e

RIER TR, (4810)
BRENRR - HbEN

BR AR N FE R SRR H0
AHEEENOfd)

Cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities
Income tax refunded

LR (BTRE)BiZH D

EREIMSH

Net cash (used in)/generated from
operating activities

AR (BFE) S HTiSHE £
JFEE

2021

SOy

HK$’000
BT

(14,810)

(4,374)
(56)

(377)
1,774

44
41

(2,948)

(2,948)

2020
—E-TE

—_—= =

HK$’000
BETIT

(23,347)

795
8,285

12,813
(2,300)
(3,128)

5,318

(1,563)

6,077
(2,851)

186
(405)

1,446
43

1,489



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

for the year ended 31 December 2021 * #ZE —E——4#+—-H=+—HIFFF

AL (RED) ARAF - —F - —FFER

2021
—EC-—F

Note HK$’000
Iz BT T

Cash flows from investing activities

REXBELEZRERE

Purchase of property, plant and equipment B E 1% - E L&

Proceeds from disposals of property,
plant and equipment

HEME - BE MR

S 3IA

(52)

Decrease/(increase) in pledged bank BEBBITERRL

deposits (3gm)
Bank interest received BUERTTHLE
Dividend received from listed investments WK B FHREZKRE
Proceeds from disposal of financial HERAFEFAEMER

assets at fair value through other WA Z B 758 B 2 Fris

comprehensive income RIE
Net cash generated from ARG 2 FRE

investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities RIEXBKELCZRETE
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE 34
Increase in amount due to a shareholder &1 — 42 PR B 3R IE L 1) 34
Repayment of principle portion of EEHEBERSE D

the lease liabilities 34
Interest paid on lease liabilities HEBGEENIFE 34
Loan interest paid ERNERFE 34

(2,588)

(8,230)
(582)
(2,735)

Net cash (used in)/generated from
financing activities

B E R (FTFE),FTifHE %
JFEE

(14,135)

Net increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents
at 1 January

ReERkBRESEYEMER

R—A—HZASRRS
£EY

Cash and cash equivalents

RTt=ZA=+—HZHRE

at 31 December LESZEEY
Analysis of the balances of cashand RERHRELZEY>
cash equivalents Ao
Cash and bank balances as stated in RGBT R Z
consolidated statement of financial Be MIBTHES

position

2020
—E-F

—_—= =

HK$’000
BETIT

(383)

(6,407)
1,061
3,128

3,232

636

(1,566)
15,000

(5,782)
(756)
(4,562)

2,334

4,459

21,866

26,325

26,325
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Century Legend (Holdings) Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
Bermuda and its shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The Company’s registered office is at Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, Hamilton, HM 11, Bermuda and its principal
place of business is at Unit 906, 9th Floor, Capital Centre, 151

Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong Dollars (“HK$”), which is also the functional currency
of the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest

thousand (“HK$’000”) except when otherwise indicated.

The Company is principally engaged in investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out
in note 31. The Company and its subsidiaries are referred to as

“the Group” hereinafter.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 61 to
178 have been prepared in accordance with all Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) which
collectively includes individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). The consolidated financial
statements also include the applicable disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2021 were approved and authorised for issue by the

directors on 30 March 2022.
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(a)

(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Adoption of new or revised HKFRSs -
effective on 1 January 2021

In the current year, the Group has applied for the
first time the following new standards, amendments
and interpretations issued by the HKICPA, which
are relevant to and effective for the Group’s financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1
January 2021:

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform —
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, Phase 2
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16

The adoption of these new or amended HKFRSs did not
have any material impact on the Group’s results and
financial position or the Company’s accounting policies.

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective

The following new or revised HKFRSs, potentially
relevant to the Group’s financial statements, have been
issued, but are not yet effective and have not been early
adopted by the Group. The Group’s current intention
is to apply these changes on the date they become
effective.
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(b)

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions

Amendments to HKAS 37

Amendments to HKAS 16

Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2018-2020

Amendments to HKFRS 3
Amendments to HKAS 1

HK Interpretation 5 (2020)

Amendments to HKAS 8
Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2

Beyond 30 June 2021"

Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfilling
a Contract?

Property, plant and equipment -
Proceeds before Intended Use?

Amendments to HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments and
HKFRS 16 Leases?

Reference to the Conceptual
Framework®

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current*

Presentation of Financial Statements
- Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause*

Definition of Accounting Estimates*

Deferred Tax Related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction*

Disclosure of Accounting Policies*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2021

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022
3 Effective for business combinations for which the date of

acquisition is on or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2022

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2023

The directors of the Company anticipate that all of the
relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning after the
effective date of the pronouncement.

(b)

C M B R E A H AT A
BT ERM B REZER ()
ERUBASENS 6N, —Fo-FRAZT

{537 A2 #COVID-19
EERE R
Bhen BN BT BEAN-G1EN
i
BAGHENZ 6T BT NE BERRE-
{ERT RN
Bz

B )\FECECREER BRUHAS LR

FHRREEANERNE  HIBASRIA
RERMHRSE

BB 16% 25T
gz
EAVBRL RSy HEAERNRL
{537

EReENRHLET  ARNRDA

FRINE
ERRBEOR(CF-TF) MRERA2)-f
FAHZERER
EEAR TR
FHDE

ERRE AT B
EReGENR 2N LY EERRAELNE
ENAEREN
Eha
BESTHEARIRLEIR SHUROBE
BRMEREENERAS
228

! RZZEZ—FWA—Hzz#&
R A B 4 FE HARE A A

2 WZTZ—F—A B2k
i 48 B 67 FE HA 8 AR 3

8 BARKERR R T
—A—BszERBHE—E
FEHEBMABZARZENE
HE bt

¢ RZFE_=F—A—H%kz&
R A B 4 FE HARE A A

ARAREEHHMAERBLMN
EESRAKRER RMMEERE
M H RS ARG
BUR AP IR ©



(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 -
Related Rent Concessions Beyond 30 June
2021

The amendment extends the time limit in one of the
qualifying criteria of the practical expedient for COVID-
19-related rent concessions from 30 June 2021 to 30
June 2022. As such, the use of the practical expedient
is available to more rent concessions, in particular those
involving reduction in lease payments originally due after
30 June 2021 but before 30 June 2022.

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts
- Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract
(e.g. direct labour and materials) or an allocation of
other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g.
the allocation of the depreciation charge for an item
of property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

AL (RE)ARAR - ZF - FFEH

(b)

A5 A BB R Mt AR

HE—_FT-——FF+-A=+—HIFE

2 EMERE R L
BT E B EREER(E)
ERMKHREEAFE165E2
BT —E=-_—FXA=1H
Z#BCOVID-194665 /=
94

Z &I B COVID-19+8 B &
ERMNERATREE CFTE
PF-HEREENKREZ-Z
——FRNAZtHERE_-ZT
——HFXA=1+H--Alt 0 Z
ERATREZAITRARES
HeTER  LHEHESPRRER
T —FXA=+HZ%E
E-ZE-_—_FXA=+8HZH
EIHRR M E T B A RAE o

=13

ERETEREITR BT
BEEHN —&HEITHIRZE
ZEERARAEHZ [BITK
RIBHETRENEEMEBIK
K- BEMNBERMBEBIKAS
BITARNZIEERAN(INEERS
TRMKE) - REETANER
Mz B AR ADE (AR E
TEHNZYME  BFEREER
BZHrEXHDE)



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A5 A BB R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2021

(b)

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 16 Proceeds before
Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers
to the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement
that, for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an
acquirer applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result of
past events. For a levy that would be within the scope of
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 to determine whether the obligating event that
gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has occurred by
the acquisition date. The amendments also add an
explicit statement that an acquirer does not recognise
contingent assets acquired in a business combination.
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(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements - Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Int 5 (2020) was revised as a consequence of the
Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in August 2020. The
revision to HK Int 5 (2020) updates the wordings in the
interpretation to align with the Amendments to HKAS
1 with no change in conclusion and do not change the
existing requirements.

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting policies and changes in
accounting estimates. Among other things, the
amendments now define accounting estimates as
monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty, and clarify that
the effects of a change in an input or a measurement
technique used to develop an accounting estimate are
changes in accounting estimates unless they result from
the correction of prior period errors.
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(b)

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred tax related
to assets and liabilities arising from a single
transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the recognition
exemption in paragraphs 15 and 24 of HKAS 12 so
that it does not apply to such transactions as leases
and decommissioning provisions that, on initial
recognition, give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences. Consequently, entities will
need to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred
tax liability for temporary differences arising on these
transactions.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Presentation of
financial statements and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 - Making materiality judgements

The amendments seek to promote improved accounting
policy disclosures that provide more useful information
to investors and other primary users of the financial
statements.

Apart from clarifying that entities are required to
disclose their “material” rather than “significant”
accounting policy, the amendments provide guidance
on applying the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures.
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(b)

for the year ended 31 December 2021

New or revised HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective (Continued)
Annual Improvements to HKFRS 2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

- HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 97),
which clarify the fees included in the ‘10 per
cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in
assessing whether to derecognise a financial
liability, explaining that only fees paid or received
between the entity and the lender, including fees
paid or received by either the entity or the lender
on other’s behalf are included.

- HKFRS 16 which amend lllustrative Example 13
to remove the illustration of reimbursement of
leasehold improvements by the lessor in order
to resolve any potential confusion regarding the
treatment of lease incentives that might arise
because of how lease incentives are illustrated in
that example.

The new or revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
not yet effective are unlikely to have material impact
on the Group’s results and financial position upon
application.
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The significant accounting policies that have been used in
the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are
summarised below. These policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented unless otherwise stated.

3.1 Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for
investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are stated at fair value. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies below.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the loss of
the Group amounted to approximately HK$14,312,000.
As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
HK$38,117,000. Out of which, secured bank
borrowings of approximately HK$157,719,000 would
be due for repayment in 2022 in accordance with the
repayment dates of the respective agreements and
a shareholder loan of HK$15,000,000 without fixed
term of repayment, while the Group maintained the
pledged bank deposits and cash and bank balances
of approximately HK$80,989,000 and HK$27,596,000
respectively. These events or conditions may cast
significant doubt about the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
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3.1

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Basis of preparation and going concern
assumption (Continued)

Notwithstanding the above, the consolidated financial
statements have been prepared a going concern basis
as the directors considered that the Group will have
sufficient financial resources to meet in full its working
capital requirements and financial obligations during
the next twelve months after the reporting period. The
events that have been considered include the following:

(i) A shareholder has confirmed to provide financial
support to the Group to finance its operations
and not to recall the shareholder loan until the
Group has the ability to repay;

(if) The Group has renewed with its banker
for the bank facilities of approximately
HK$230,482,000; and

(iii) The Group would consider disposing of certain
investment properties to provide further funding
when the liquidity needs arise.
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3.2

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Business combination and basis of
consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (see note 3.3 below). Inter-company
transactions and balances between group companies
together with unrealised profits are eliminated in full
in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on the
asset transferred, in which case the loss is recognised
in profit or loss.

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income from the dates
of acquisition or up to the dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are made
to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their
accounting policies in line with those used by other
members of the Group.
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3.2

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is accounted
for using the acquisition method when the acquired
set of activities and assets meets the definition of a
business and control is transferred to the Group. In
determining whether a particular set of activities and
assets is a business, the Group assesses whether
the set of assets and activities acquired includes, at
a minimum, an input and substantive processes and
whether the acquired set has the ability to produce
outputs. The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value of assets
transferred, liabilities incurred and equity interests
issued by the Group, as the acquirer. The identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed are principally
measured at acquisition-date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss.
The Group may elect, on a transaction-by-transaction
basis, to measure the non-controlling interest either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s
identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling
interests are measured at fair value unless another
measurement basis is required by another HKFRSs.
Acquisition-related costs incurred are expensed unless
they are incurred in issuing equity instruments, in which
case the costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by
the acquirer is recognised at acquisition-date fair
value. Subsequent adjustments to consideration
are recognised against goodwill only to the extent
that they arise from new information obtained within
the measurement period (a maximum of 12 months
from the acquisition date) about the fair value at the
acquisition date. All other subsequent adjustments to
contingent consideration classified as an asset or a
liability are recognised in profit or loss.
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3.2

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Business combination and basis of
consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s interest and the non-controlling interests are
adjusted to reflect the changes in their relative interests
in the subsidiaries. Any difference between the amount
by which the non-controlling interest is adjusted and
the fair value of the consideration paid or received is
recognised directly in equity and attributed to owners of
the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount
of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the
subsidiary and any non-controlling interest. Amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary is the amount
of those interests at initial recognition plus the
non-controlling interest’s share of subsequent changes
in equity. Total comprehensive income is attributed
to non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.
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3.3

3.4

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company
is able to exercise control. The Company controls
an investee if all three of the following elements are
present:

- power over the investee;

- exposure, or rights, to variable returns from the
investee; and

- the ability to use its power to affect those
variable returns.

Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances
indicate that there may be a change in any of these
elements of control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The results of the subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividends received and receivable.

Foreign currency

In the individual financial statements of the consolidated
entities, foreign currency transactions are translated
into the functional currency of the individual entity
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of
the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at that date. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the end of the reporting period retranslation of
monetary assets and liabilities are recognised in profit or
loss.

AL (RE)ARAR - ZF - FFEH

3.3

3.4

A5 A BB R Mt AR

HE—_FT-——FF+-A=+—HIFE

o) NG
MEBAREARBRYEEITE
THIEZWIRETT o (KA
T=HEGE - ARBMBHEK
B2 EHIRE

- BRRENITEED

-  HEREWEREFIZFY
Bl AR R LT AR
/RIS

- BTEHEHBERESZ
RO EREFHOR -

HEERBRBREMEABE
BRI E - AIEHFEA
I -

RARRZHHARREZS - B
MB LR 2 RERRAERE
HEREE(INE) IR - MHEA
B2 XEBRARBIZE R RE
W B 5B -

SN

K& GHE R Z @B B & ®|E
oNERSRR B ZE
REXGESERNER 2
B o RIMEHR - AINET
BZEREERBENRER
ZERNEERBE - REE
ZER G RARERREH R
HEBMEERBEMELZI
BHBRAEENBRRTESR -



CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2021

A5 A BB R M R

for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.4

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Foreign currency (Continued)

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined and are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements, all individual
financial statements of foreign operations, originally
presented in a currency different from the Group’s
presentation currency, have been converted into HK$.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into HK$
at the closing rates at the end of the reporting period.
Income and expenses have been converted into HK$
at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates, or
at the average exchange rates for the reporting period
provided that the exchange rates do not fluctuate
significantly. Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated separately in the translation reserve in
equity.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the translation
reserve relating to that operation up to the date of
disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part of the
profit or loss on disposal.
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3.5

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Revenue and other income recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

- provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

- creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

- does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the goods or service.
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Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amounts receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction between
the Group and the customer at contract inception.
Where the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
Group, revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For contracts
where the period between the payment and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less,
the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of
a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (“HKFRS 157).

The Group recognised revenue as the following basis:

(a) Revenue from rendering of hair styling services
is recognised when the relevant services are
rendered and transferred over time. There is only
one performance obligation. In general, there is
no credit term offered to the customers which is
consistent with market practice.

(b) Rental income under leases arrangements is
recognised on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease.

(c) Service fee income in relation to hospitality
services is recognised when the relevant services
are provided to the customers.
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3.5

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9)

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal outstanding at the applicable interest
rate.

Commission and management fee income
is recognised when the agreed services are
provided.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to
receive payment is established.

Revenue from rendering of property project
management services

The Group has determined that there are
significant integration of different elements
underlying a property management contract and
thus such contracts are considered to contain
only a single performance obligation. In addition,
the Group’s performance creates or enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the asset
is created or enhanced. Accordingly, the revenue
from these contracts are recognised over time.

When the outcome of a performance obligation
in the property management contract can be
reasonably measured, contract revenue and the
associated contract costs are recognised over
time based on the progress of the respective
contract at the end of the reporting period.
The progress toward complete satisfaction
of the performance obligation of a property
management contract is determined by
reference to the contract costs incurred to date
as a proportion of the total estimated contract
costs. Contract costs and contract progress
are highly correlated for property management
contract.
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3.5 Revenue and other income recognition
(Continued)

(9)

Revenue from rendering of property project
management services (Continued)

When the outcome of a performance obligation
in the property management contract cannot
be reasonably measured, revenue is recognised
only to the extent of contract costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered.

Contract modification (i.e. variation order)
are recognised when they are approved by
customer. Generally modification to a property
management contract is not accounted for as
a separate contract. Contract modification is
accounted for as if it were a part of the existing
contract and, therefore, form part of a single
performance obligation that is partially satisfied
at the date of the contract modification. The
effect that the contract modification on the
contract sum and on the Group’s measures of
progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation, is recognised as an
adjustment to revenue (either as an increase
in or a reduction of revenue) at the date of
the contract modification (i.e. the adjustment
to revenue is made on a cumulative catch-
up basis). For approved modifications where a
change in price has not been agreed and other
claims, they are accounted for following the
requirements in relation to variable consideration
that the amount of consideration is estimated
to which the Group will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is
constrained until it is highly probable that a
significant revenue reversal in the amount of
cumulative revenue recognised will not occur.
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3.5

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Revenue and other income recognition

(Continued)

(g) Revenue from rendering of property project
management services (Continued)
If at any time the costs to complete the contract
are estimated to exceed the remaining amount of
the consideration under the contract, a provision
is recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy for onerous contracts as set out in note
3.18.

Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the
Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the property project management works
under such services contracts but yet certified by
architects, surveyors or other representatives appointed
by customers. Any amount previously recognised as
a contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables
at the point at which it is certified and invoiced to the
customer. If the considerations (including advances
received from customers) exceeds the revenue
recognised to date, then the Group recognises a
contract liability for the difference.
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Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for
their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part
of the cost of those assets. Income earned on
temporary investments of specific borrowings pending
their expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at acquisition
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses, if any. The cost of property, plant and
equipment includes its purchase price and the costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as
to write off their cost net of expected residual value
over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis.
The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each of the reporting period. The useful lives
are as follows:

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

useful life

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

useful life

Over the shorter of
remaining lease term
or estimated

Leasehold land and buildings

Right-of-use for other
properties leased

Motor vehicles

useful life
Leasehold improvements 10 - 33 /3%
Furniture, fixtures and office 20 -33 /3%

equipment
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3.7

3.8

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)
Leased assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis
over their expected useful lives on the same basis as
owned assets, or where shorter, the term of the relevant
lease.

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (See note 3.9).

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets or, where shorter, the term of the relevant lease.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant
and equipment is the difference between the net sale
proceeds and its carrying amount, and is recognised in
profit or loss on disposal.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Investment properties

Investment property is property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation or for both, but not
held for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes.
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Investment properties (Continued)

On initial recognition, investment property is measured
at cost, including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment property
is stated at fair value. Fair value is determined by
external professional valuers, with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature of the
investment property. The carrying amounts recognised
at the end of the reporting period reflect the prevailing
market conditions at the end of the reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from either changes in the fair
value or the sale of an investment property are included
in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.

For a transfer from investment properties to
owner-occupied properties or inventories, the deemed
cost of property for subsequent accounting is its fair
value at the date of change in use.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment including right-of-use
assets, and the Company’s interests in subsidiaries
are tested for impairment whenever there are
indications that the asset’s carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an expense
immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of fair value, reflecting
market conditions less costs to sell, and value-in-use. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessment of
time value of money and the risk specific to the asset.

3.8

3.9

REWMEA)

R FHERE - REWEEK
A(BEEMEZEEKAR)
FFE - RUIBHERR - AW
XBAVFERY - AFESRE
REMEUNENMEETEASR
CERRZINEEXAEME
o RBEMRERZEEE
R IR E R ZBRITHR

ARAFEZPRHEREDE
MESZ BEREESHB
ABEHEF -

S DR LY DR
% fERME B R 2 HR
FRA BERE MR E B2 A
FiE -

FUMBEERE
YEDRBREE BAET
AWE - WE - R R R
(B IEE FEEERAR AR
B8 2 2 2 ) TR R
o

MEBEZEEZ REEBG
H A] i [a] £ B8 2 7B 0 B B R AR
RFX o AT E SRR R RER T
W2 B R & R & fE
EEMETRSE - EFHE
REER - & RKRAEER
RGBT ARKREREMRE
HEE ZBBRERRRBRIRT
MG 2 B’ 2B ERZ
BEZBERR -
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3.10

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Impairment of non-financial assets
(Continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where an
asset does not generate cash inflows largely independent
from those from other assets, the recoverable amount is
determined for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit).
As a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating unit
level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment loss
had been recognised.

Leases

(@) Accounting as a lessee
All leases (irrespective of they are operating
leases or finance leases) are required to be
capitalised in the statement of financial position
as right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, but
accounting policy choices exist for an entity
to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which are
short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has
elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for low-value assets and leases
for which at the commencement date have
a lease term less than 12 months. The lease
payments associated with those leases have
been expensed on straight-line basis over the
lease term.
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3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised
at cost and would comprise: (i) the amount of
the initial measurement of the lease liability (see
below for the accounting policy to account for
lease liability); (ii) any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, less
any lease incentives received; (iii) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee; and (iv) an
estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee
in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease, unless those costs
are incurred to produce inventories. Except for
right-of-use asset that meets the definition of an
investment property to which the Group applies
the revaluation model, the Group measures the
right-of-use assets applying a cost model. Under
the cost model, the Group measures the right-
of-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any re-measurement of lease
liability. The Group presents right-of-use assets
that do not meet the definition of investment
property in “Property, plant and equipment” in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present
value of the lease payments that are not paid
at the date of commencement of the lease.
The lease payments are discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can
be readily determined. If that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.10 Leases (Continued)

(a)

Accounting as a lessee (Continued)

Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use of
the underlying asset during the lease term that
are not paid at the commencement date of the
lease are considered to be lease payments:
(i) fixed payments less any lease incentives
receivable: (ii) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured
using the index or rate as at commencement
date; (iii) amounts expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees; (iv) the
exercise price of a purchase option if the lessee
is reasonably certain to exercise that option;
and (v) payments of penalties for terminating
the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee
exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date,
the Group measures the lease liability by: (i)
increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest
on the lease liability; (i) reducing the carrying
amount to reflect the lease payments made; and
iii) remeasuring the carrying amount to reflect
any reassessment or lease modifications, e.g.,
a change in future lease payments arising from
change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed
lease payments or a change in assessment to
purchase the underlying asset.

The Group presents lease liabilities separately in
the consolidated statement of financial position.
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3.10 Leases (Continued)

(b)

Accounting as a lessor

The Group has leased out its investment
properties to a number of tenants. Rental income
from operating leases is recognised in profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of
the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset
and recognised as an expense on the straight-
line basis over the lease term.

3.11 Financial Instruments

(a)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition
or issue. A trade receivable without a significant
financing component is initially measured at the
transaction price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or
sales are purchases or sales of financial assets
that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention
in the market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest are measured at amortised
cost. Financial assets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the effective
interest method. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on
derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive
income (“FVOCI”): Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows and for
selling the financial assets, where the assets’
cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at FVOCI.
Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently
measured at fair value. Interest income
calculated using the effective interest method,
foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other
net gains and losses are recognised in other
comprehensive income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Debt instruments (Continued)

Fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”"):
Financial assets at FVTPL include financial
assets held for trading, financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at FVTPL,
or financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in
the near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as
held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments. Financial assets
with cash flows that are not solely payments
of principal and interest are classified and
measured at FVTPL, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at FVOCI, as described above, debt instruments
may be designated at FVTPL on initial
recognition if doing so eliminates, or significantly
reduces, an accounting mismatch.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(a)

Financial assets (Continued)

Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment
that is not held for trading, the Group could
irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made
on an investment-by-investment basis. Equity
investments at FVOCI are measured at fair value.
Dividend income are recognised in profit or loss
unless the dividend income clearly represents a
recovery of part of the cost of the investments.
Other net gains and losses are recognised
in other comprehensive income and are not
reclassified to profit or loss. All other equity
instruments are classified as financial assets at
FVTPL, whereby changes in fair value, dividends
and interest income are recognised in profit or
loss.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost and debt
investments measured at FVOCI. The ECLs
are measured on either of the following bases:
(i) 12 months ECLs: these are the ECLs that
result from possible default events within the 12
months after the end of the reporting period: and
(i) lifetime ECLs: these are ECLs that result from
all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument. The maximum
period considered when estimating ECLs is the
maximum contractual period over which the
Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the difference between all contractual cash
flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Group expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using simplified approach under HKFRS
9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and has
calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12-months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available
without undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if it is
more than 30 days past due.

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (i) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such
as realising security (if any is held); or (i) the
financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial
assets is calculated based on the amortised
cost (i.e. the gross carrying amount less loss
allowance) of the financial asset. For non
credit-impaired financial assets interest income
is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at FVTPL
are initially measured at fair value and financial
liabilities at amortised cost are initially measured
at fair value, net of directly attributable costs
incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade payables, other payables and accruals,
amount due to non-controlling interests, lease
liabilities and bank borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method. The related interest expense is
recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer to make specified
payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it
incurs because a specified debtor fails to make
payment when due in accordance with the
original or modified terms of a debt instrument. A
financial guarantee contract issued by the Group
and not designated as at FVTPL is recognised
initially at its fair value less transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the issue of
the financial guarantee contract. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the
financial guarantee contract at the higher of:
(i) the amount of the loss allowance, being the
ECLs provision measured in accordance with
principles of the accounting policy set out in note
3.11 (b); and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows
in relation to the financial asset expire or when
the financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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3.11 Financial Instruments (Continued)

3.12

(c)

Financial liabilities (Continued)
Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid
and are recognised initially and measured at
their fair value on the date the financial liability
or part thereof is extinguished. If the fair value
of the equity instruments issued cannot be
reliably measured, the equity instruments are
measured to reflect the fair value of the financial
liability extinguished. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability or part
thereof extinguished and the consideration paid
is recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Inventories

Inventories comprise finished goods and consumable
stocks and are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value after making due allowance for
obsolescence on slow moving items. Cost, calculated
on the first-in, first-out basis, comprises invoiced value
of goods and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present locations and conditions.
Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
prices in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.
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3.13 FiEHzEstRE

3.13 Accounting for income taxes

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities comprise
those obligations to, or claims from, tax authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of income tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred taxes are calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences. This involves the
comparison of the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements with
their respective tax bases at the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried forward
as well as other unused tax credits, to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit, including existing taxable
temporary differences, will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from
initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither taxable nor accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to control
the reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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3.13 FiEBzastERE(H)

3.13 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they are
enacted or substantively enacted at the end of reporting
period.

An exception to the general requirement on determining
the appropriate tax rate used in measuring deferred tax
amount is when an investment property is carried at
fair value under HKAS 40 Investment Property. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred tax amounts
on these investment properties are measured using the
tax rates that would apply on sale of these investment
properties at their carrying amounts at the end of the
reporting period. The presumption is rebutted when
the investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to consume
substantially all the economic benefits embodied in the
property over time, rather than through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss, or in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity if they relate to items that
are charged or credited to other comprehensive income
or directly to equity.

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if, the Group:

(a) has the legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts; and

(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.
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3.13

3.14

3.15

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Accounting for income taxes (Continued)
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred
tax liabilities in net if, and only if:

(@) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities;
and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority on either (i) the same
taxable entity; or (ii) different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities
and assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to
be settled or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at banks and
in hand as well as short-term bank deposits with original
maturities of three months or less which are subject to
insignificant risk of changes in value.

Share premium

Share premium includes any premiums received on the
issuance of shares over the par value. Any transaction
costs associated with the issuance of shares are
deducted from share premium (net of any related
income tax benefit) to the extent they are incremental
costs directly attributable to the equity transaction.
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3.16 Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Short-term employee benefits
Short-term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short-term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Defined contribution retirement plan
Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

Share-based employee compensation

The Group operates equity-settled share-based
compensation plans to remunerate its employees and
directors.

All employee services received in exchange for the
grant of any share-based compensation are measured
at their fair values. These are indirectly determined by
reference to the share options awarded. Their value is
appraised at the grant date and excludes the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.17 Share-based employee compensation

(Continued)

Share-based compensation is recognised as an
expense in full at the grant date when the share
options granted vest immediately, with a corresponding
increase in share options reserve. If vesting periods
or other vesting conditions apply, the expense is
recognised over the vesting period, based on the best
available estimate of the number of share options
expected to vest. Non-market vesting conditions are
taken into account by adjusting the number of equity
instruments expected to vest at the end of each of
the reporting period so that, ultimately, the cumulative
amount recognised over the vesting period is based
on the number of options that eventually vest. Market
vesting conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all other vesting conditions
are satisfied, a charge is made irrespective of whether
the market vesting conditions are satisfied. The
cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a market vesting condition.

At the time when the share options are exercised, the
amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to share premium. When the share
options are later forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share
option reserve will be transferred to retained profits/
accumulated losses.
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3.18 BERIREE

3.18 Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which it is probable will result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reliably estimated. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are
stated at the present value of the expenditure expected
to settle the obligation. All provisions are reviewed at
the end of each of the reporting period and adjusted to
reflect the current best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Onerous contracts

An onerous contract exists when the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract.
Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of
terminating the contract and the net cost of continuing
with the contract.
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3.19

3.20

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and prepares
segment information based on the regular internal
financial information reported to the chief operating
decision maker i.e. the executive directors for their
decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of the
performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless the
segments have similar economic characteristics and
are similar in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes, the type
or class of customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the nature of
the regulatory environment. Operating segments which
are not individually material may be aggregated if they
share a majority of these criteria.

Government grant

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants
will be received. Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised as income or
deducted in the related expenses, as appropriate, in
profit or loss on a systematic basis in the same periods
in which the expenses are incurred.

Grants that compensate the Group for the cost of
an asset are recognised as deferred income in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
transferred to profit or loss on a systematic and rational
basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as compensation
for expenses or losses already incurred or for the
purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other income, rather
than reducing the related expense.
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3.21 Related parties
A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(@)

has control or joint control over the
Group;

has significant influence over the Group;
or

is a member of key management
personnel of the Group or the Company’s
parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

(i)

(if)

(i)

The entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of the employees
of the Group or an entity related to the
Group.
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for the year ended 31 December 2021

3.21 Related parties (Continued)
(b) An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply: (Continued)

(vi) The entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in (a).

(vii) A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(viii)  The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence, or
be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the
entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or domestic
partner;
(if) children of that person’s spouse or domestic

partner; and

(ifi) dependents of that person or that person’s
spouse or domestic partner.
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In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Critical judgment in applying accounting policies
The following is the critical judgment, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Going concern basis

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a going concern basis, the validity of which depends upon
the financing plan assessed as detailed in note 3.1 to these
consolidated financial statements. However, because not all
future events or conditions can be predicted, this assumption
is not a guarantee as to the Group’s and Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of resulting a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial reporting period
are as below:

(a)

Estimated fair value of investment properties
As disclosed in note 15, the Group’s investment
properties were revalued at the end of the reporting
period by independent professional valuers. Such
valuations were based on certain assumptions which
are subject to uncertainty and might materially differ
from the actual results. In making the judgment, the
Group considers latest completed transactions and
information from current prices in an active market for
similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each
of the reporting period.

For more detailed information in relation to fair value
measurement of investment properties, refer to note 15.
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Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators
of impairment for property, plant and equipment at the
end of reporting period. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment is
estimated using the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposals and its value in use. If the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment exceeds its recoverable
amount, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce
the asset to its recoverable amount. Such impairment
losses are recognised in profit or loss. When value in
use calculations are undertaken, management must
estimate the expected future cash flows from the asset
or cash-generating unit based on key assumptions such
as the budgeted revenue, budgeted gross margins,
the growth rate and overall market and economic
conditions, and choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows. Future changes in the events and conditions
underlying the estimates and judgements would affect
the estimation of recoverable amounts and result in
adjustments to their carrying amounts.

For more details information in relation to impairment
assessment of property, plant and equipment, refer to
note 14.
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S(a). REVENUE

Revenue which is derived from the Group’s principal activities,

is recognised during the year as follows:

S5(a). Ytz
W

FA-RKEAKEETLEXHZDER

2021 2020
—E=-—F —T_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BETT ST IT
Rendering of hair styling services and IRMER LA R KB ER
related product sales fHE 15,236
Securities investments BHEE 2,969
Hospitality services income BEJE& ST ON 8,976
Gross rental income from investment REJEME A BBA
properties 4,257
Interest income from money lending xEEEZHEWA 2
Service income from property REMEERER ZREKA
management projects 3,908
35,348
5(b). OTHER INCOME 5(b). HA U A
2021 2020
—EB-—F —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Bank interest income RITHEHA 2,262 2,300
Dividend income from listed investments K BIZ A ET A E Mt 2 EIK
classified as financial assets AD AV BEEEN LR
at FVOCI &z REWA 193
Exchange gain b 5 U e 5,547
Government subsidies (note) B EE (M) 2,167
Sundry income TR 1,219
11,426
Note:  In 2020, among the government subsidies, an amount of HK$1,542,000 Mzt RZT_TF BN#HHETEBE

was government grants obtained from the Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund launched by the
Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
supporting the payroll of the Group’s employees. Under the ESS, the
Group had to commit to spend these grants on payroll expenses,
and not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The Group has complied with the requirements
set out in the ESS for the year ended 31 December 2020.
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The Group has identified its operating segments and prepared
segment information based on the regular internal financial
information reported to the Group’s executive directors for
their decisions about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and review of these components’
performance. The business components in the internal
reporting to the executive directors who are the chief operating
decision makers are determined following the Group’s major
product and service lines. The Group is currently organised
into the following six operating segments:

Hair styling — Provision of hair styling and related
services and product sales in
Hong Kong

Money lending — Provision of commercial and

personal loans in Hong Kong

Property investments

Investing in commercial and
residential properties for rental
income and for potential capital
appreciation in both Macau and
Hong Kong

Securities investments — Investing in listed equity securities
in Hong Kong and equity-linked

investments in Hong Kong

Hospitality services

Provision of hospitality services in
Hong Kong

Property project — Provision of property related
management project management service
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Segment revenue and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results

by reportable segments:
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Segment revenue

Pl €

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
BT

Hair styling

Money lending

Property investments
Securities investments
Hospitality services

Property project management

Unallocated income
Exchange gain, net
Corporate staff costs
Other corporate and
unallocated expenses

Loss before income tax

Revenue reported above represents revenue generated from

external customers.

Segment results represent the profit earned/loss incurred
by each segment without allocation of central administrative
costs. Segment results excluded certain bank interest income,
dividend income from financial assets at FVOCI and net
exchange gain which arise from assets that are managed on
a group basis. Segment results also excluded corporate staff
costs and other corporate and unallocated expenses. This
is the measure reported to the executive directors for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment

performance.

SERURET 16,314
BE 6
MERE 4,303
BHIE 3,006
IR G M SR RS 11,982
YIHTER B2 881
RATIBA
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Segment results

paiE

2020 2021 2020
ZEITF [ == T CFF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT

(108)
(10)
3,122)
3,128
5,635)
(91)

36,492 35,348

(5,838)

3,665
3,095
(7,492)

(8,240)

(14,810)
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B R IE W e FEE o 0 RBEAE IR
TREARBIRAREMREIA R
ADEAX - WWHIRARITEFTZHRZ
7% BEDSEERAKLFED BER
i o
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0.

SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 0.

Segment assets and liabilities

o Bk (451
ABEERAME

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
BT

5,918
114
137,025
70,473
220,768
71

Segment assets PEEE
Hair styling SRR ET
Money lending BE
Property investments MERE
Securities investments BHEE
Hospitality services MRIE R AR RS
Property project management YIEBEER
Total segment assets DEBE EMRTE
Deferred tax assets EETRIEEE
Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEFTAEMZERA
LB EE
Pledged bank deposits EHEIRRITIFR
Short-term bank deposits EHIRITIER

Other corporate and unallocated assets

HisRBIRADEEE

434,369

558

5,026
80,989
20,598

5,658

547,198

40

Consolidated total assets AU EERTE
Segment liabilities PHEE

Hair styling il

Money lending BE

Property investments MERE
Hospitality services MRIE AR
Property project management MEIEEER
Total segment liabilities DEPBELRTE
Deferred tax liabilities BETRIBRE
Bank borrowings RITEE

Other corporate and unallocated liabilities

HiRAIRADBEEE

58,906

6,712
155,120
18,180

Consolidated total liabilities

BHAEARE

238,918

2020
—z-=%

— =

HK$'000
BETIT

9,876
66
135,813
71,784
230,722
322

448,583

4,446
92,469
2,361
24,439

572,298

5,561
23
15,865
46,858
241

68,548
6,652

155,120
19,966

250,286
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Segment assets and liabilities (Continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and
allocating resources between segments:

- all assets are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax assets, financial assets at FVOCI,
pledged bank deposits and short-term bank deposits
which are managed on group basis and other corporate
and unallocated assets; and

- all liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other
than deferred tax liabilities and certain bank borrowings
which are managed on group basis, and other
corporate and unallocated liabilities.

Other segment information

Fair value gain on
Interest income investment properties
HERA RENFZATERE

Finance costs
BERE
2021
§--F
HK$'000
BT

ZE2%F B T TOTE
HK$'000
BRI

HK$'000
BT

e
>

/
ol

m] M

\*I Z/m:
&EF(%E)
HMRIAL DSBS D HEEIR

d\

/

ok B} ok -
-0

P

Dk

Y

- FBREEOSEEFNZHRDF
(EXHRBEE - BAFEFA
HE2mBAZHHEE &
MEEEERZCEMBETHE
RAREHRTERARE MR
ARRDEEERIN) : R

- FBRREHSKEFZEY
(EEHRERELZAGELEE
BZETRITEEREMAR
RARDEAERIN)

7 #B

Htt o BE R

Additions to specified
non-current assets Depreciation
EEFRBEEZAE il 4
2020 2021 2020 2021 2020
ZRI-F memkes
HK$'000 ESLEN0)
EBTn kay

HK$'000
BETT

127
210
866

201 3,197
327 - 169
1,289 5,221

1,867 8,587

3,451 1,685

2021 2020 2021 2020

EC—F el o CTITF =
HK$'000 [GICNON HKS'000 [RIEH0N
i Ewl AT EELSTA AT
Hair styling EiR s -
Property investments 1% 5% & -
Hospitaly senvices  HE RFE R -
Unallocated AR 2,262 JPRLY -
Total by 2,262 2,300 900 -

5,318

2 EERRNRTE 10,272

During the year ended 31 December 2021, an impairment
loss on right-of-use assets amounted to HK$3,383,000 was
recognised for the segment of hospitality services (note 14(c)).

 E-F-_—FFTA=t—HL

FE O FRABEEREBBRER
3,383,000 7T 7 iR JE B 3115 AR 75 5 B e
R(MFE14(c)) °
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0. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6. R E R (48)
Geographical information HEER
The geographical location of the specified non-current assets BEFRHEE(ATBETEEEY
(i.e. non-current assets excluding financial assets and deferred IRBEERBELERBEE) 2B
tax assets) is based on the physical location of the assets. The ENRBEEEERMENESE D - B
geographical location of customers is based on the location at Pz ENIRBEERERESE
which the services were provided or the goods were delivered. miEZNEE Y -
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of the AT ARIEERRBEE CRMERK
specified non-current assets and revenue from external B ERzREmz TR E
customers, analysed by the geographical location. D) °
Specified Revenue from
non-current assets external customers
BERBEE RENBEF 2=

Hong Kong (place of domicile) Z (FT#EHD) 273,655
83,791

Macau g

Information about a major customer

None of the customers individually contributed 10% or more of
the Group’s revenue for the years ended 31 December 2021
and 2020.

2021
—EBE-—F
HK$’000
BET T

2020 2021 2020

—?—755'5 :E:—ﬁ —7—745'3

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BET T BT

33,665
85,460 2,827

ER—E2XEEFMNEHR
RBE_Z-_—FR_ZT_TF+=
A=+—RIFE  HEENZEFH
ANE B ES EEFIE10% 3 BA L o
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 6.

Disaggregation of revenue

In the following table, revenue from contracts with customers
is disaggregated by operating segments and timing of revenue
recognition. Revenue from other sources are analysed in the

table.

Sral B (48)

palkidl &

T RIZLE DR WAERERE D5
BEALZIEA o G E R U
wmAITE TN RETTOHN ©

2021 2020
—B-—F ZECTF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT

Revenue from contracts with
customers

Timing of revenue recognition —
Over time

Hair styling services

Hospitality services

Property project management

Timing of revenue recognition —
At a point in time
Product sales under hair styling services

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Interest income from money lending
Securities investments

EFEERNWE
j&é%ﬂm‘%ﬁ? %57/57
SR R

TR J& B SR A AR
MEIEEEE

Yo 75 FE AR AT ] — IR — 5 B
ERRAMBIETEMHE

R B H ARz Wi
HaBA
ERCUESYON
EHRE

14,402
8,976
3,908

834

4,257

2,969

35,348

7.  FINANCE COSTS

2021 2020
—E_—-F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$'000
BET T BT T

Interest charges on bank loans
Interest charges on lease liabilities
(note 33(a))

IRITERFEHX
HEEEF MY
(B5E33(a))

2,735 4,562

582 756

3,317 5,318
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8.

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

Loss before income tax is arrived at after
charging/(crediting):

Auditor’s remuneration
Depreciation
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use assets:
— Leasehold land and buildings
(owned assets)
— Other properties leased for own use
(under lease arrangement)
Employee benefit expenses
(including Directors’ emoluments)
(note 11)
Gain on write-back of amount due to non-
controlling interest
Written-off of property, plant and equipment
Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Rentals received/receivable
from investment properties
less direct outgoings of HK$349,000
(2020: HK$376,000)
Short-term leases expenses

BT TR B BN,
(FFA) T 3R BRI

ZE &
e
ME - BE KRB
FEREEE
—HELHREF
(BEBEE)
—FAENEEAE MY E
(HEZHT)
BERAMAX
(BREEEFHH)
(F&E11)
PO e JE R R A 2R 2 M as

WEEYE - BB Rk
HEWME - BB MRk W

BUTERIREMERSRE
5 178 #349,0007T
ZEITF
7 376,0007T )

EHHERY

—E_—F
HK$’000
BET T

(3,954)
456

2020
—E-TF
HK$’ 000
BT T

600

795

1,201

7,084

22,496

(3,881)
456
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INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. 5B (#f) B K
2021 2020
—B-—f —B_FF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T

Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BIERTR I8 — B A FEH

— Over-provision in respect of prior years — — @1 & [Z B AR (1)
(11)
Deferred tax (note 27) EERIR (M 5E27) 2,402
2,391

The Group is subject to Hong Kong Profits Tax. Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% (2020: 16.5%) of the
estimated assessable profits. No Hong Kong Profits Tax has
been provided in the financial statements as the Group did not
derive any estimated assessable profits in Hong Kong for the
current and prior years.

Pursuant to the tax rules and regulations of Macau, the
subsidiaries incorporated and operated in Macau are liable to
Macau Profits Tax at the rate of 12% (2020: 12%)).

AEBEBHIBEANEH - BENE
WL R &E M IE16.5% (—F=F
F 1 16.5%)HEFE - ARAKEAR
FERBEFREYERBBELEM
A ERBE N - WA ER P B RE
TEHEENEHRE -

RIBBPIR SR A R ARG - PRI
ﬁﬁi&&%ZW% RIE12% (=
=TT 12% ) 2 B R B HNIRPIFIB
oo
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9. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE 9. TR (34 BE S (4)
(CONTINUED)
Reconciliation between income tax (credit)/expense and RERAMERTENRETH(ER) M
accounting loss at applicable tax rate is as follows: Y HEFEHEZENEERENT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —EoFF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT IT
Loss before income tax B ET1S BRI ES 18 (14,810) (23,347)
Tax at the statutory rate of 16.5% BEBEEHE16.5%(ZF
(2020: 16.5%) in Hong Kong TTMF 16.5%)TEHE (2,443) (3,852)
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries 7£ = fth Bl A R & & 2 K B
operating in other jurisdictions RAIZ TR ERZE 205 229
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses PAMBERZ 2 G2 915 1,708
Tax effect of non-taxable revenue BARMIRA 2 MIEE (503) (1,7771)
Tax losses not recognised as deferred tax KIER AIELETIBE E 2 FHIA
assets =] 2,293 6,167
Over-provision in respect of prior years WA FEEBEEE = (11)
Tax effect on other temporary differences ARIEREMERIE =58 7 15
not recognised 2 (965) (79)

Income tax (credit)/expense FTs®i(E %) Fx (498) 2,391
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10. LOSS PER SHARE 10. HREE
The calculation of basic loss per share attributable to owners of ARAREEABEERERBER
the Company is based on the following data: BUATEERE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT TT
Loss for the year KEEEE
Loss attributable to owners of the Company XA B)#EA A JE(L 1R (12,491) (24,063)
2020
—ZETF
‘000
TFh%
Number of ordinary shares BB
Weighted average number of ordinary ,?f.fr SEHREAREEmMS 2%
shares for the purpose of B INRETF I
calculating basic loss per share 326,077 326,077
For the purposes of calculating diluted loss per share for the B EEE_E-_—FR_FT_FTF
years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no adjustment has TZA=T—BULEEE2EBREES
been made as the exercise of the outstanding share options B BEENAR  BAAITERITHE
has an anti-dilutive effect on the basic loss per share. ERESHERENBEAREEY

Z=® .
=
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2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

Salaries, allowances and staff benefits e RMEETHEA

Commission e
Retirement benefit costs (note 12)

BARBHRIRA (HEE12)

22,436 21,486
452 434
585 576

23,473 22,496

Under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
regulated by the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Authority
in Hong Kong, with effect from 1 December 2000, the Group
participates in a Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits
scheme (the "MPF scheme") operated by an approved
trustee in Hong Kong and makes contributions for its eligible
employees. Under the MPF scheme, the employer and its
employees are each required to make contributions to the
scheme at 5% of the employees' relevant income, subject to
a cap of monthly relevant income. The cap of monthly relevant
income is increased from HK$25,000 to HK$30,000 from 1
June 2014. Contributions to the scheme vest immediately.

Total contributions paid by the Group into the MPF Scheme
and recognised as an expense during the year, including
contributions for the directors, amounted to HK$585,000
(2020: HK$576,000). No forfeited contribution is available for
reducing the Group’s existing level of contributions (2020: nil).

REFERGIEREETINEERM
Wiz BFIMERBEFEIGRI(E=F
ZETF+_A-BRER) A&E
2MAEBBAZFEALEN R E
AfESEE([BERE])  AHE
BEREEEHHER - RIFBE\ED
g EEIRHRESBEHANEERM
B A 5% A AT B - R E A
HEERALRZRR - 2 AEEEA
FRE-T-—OFA—-BEDLKR
78 25,000 7T 15 % # ¥ 30,000 7T ° 58
EeaBIHFI AN RE -

AEBZEBESFTIRIAE(BIEX
HESZZHR) AEE5850005T(=
T TFE  BHE576,0000T) B RAARE
EHERARAS - BIEWBEHRITMH
BAOREB ZRBHRFOKF(ZEE
F ) o
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE 13. # F5M4 X h 4 5o B A

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS +

(a) Directors’ emoluments (a) E=#2
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and ENRENES BB
payable to the directors are as follows: T

Salaries and Retirement
Fees allowances benefit costs Total
e HEeREE ENREREAE st
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
BETT BT T BETT BETT

Year ended 31 December 2021 BZ—ZE—-—-F+_8
=t+—HLEE

Executive Directors TES

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel DR AL
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia LRpALT
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania &FiEL+

Independent Non-Executive B HiTEE

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAGEEE
Mr. Lau Pui Wing BIMERLE
Ms. Ho Ting Mei gL+

Year ended 31 December 2020 BEZ-E-ZEF+=f

=t-BLEE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel LBREE 240 3,720 12 3,972
Ms. Tsang Chiu Yuen Sylvia LRELT 600 3,024 30 3,654
Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania kBEE#+ - 3,236 58 3,294

Independent Non-Executive BV {TES

Directors
Mr. Hui Yan Kit FAERE 60 - - 60
Mr. Lau Pui Wing EE LA 60 - - 60
Ms. Ho Ting Mei gL+ 60 - - 60

1,020 9,980 100 11,100
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS
(CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

None of the directors waived or has agreed to waive
emoluments in respect of the years ended 31 December
2021 and 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020,
no emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors
as an inducement to join the Group or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

Five highest paid individuals

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the five
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in
the Group include three (2020: three) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented in
note (a) above and the emoluments paid and payable
to the remaining two (2020: two) highest paid individual
are as follows:

13. H=HEME
+ (%

)

(a)

(b)

Salaries, allowances and e
other benefits
Retirement benefit costs

L IO

AL N H A48 T

S 44 F e BN

V]

EEME(E)
BE_Z-_— Gk _FF
+ZA=+—"HLFE UE
EEmEEERERENS -

HE-_ - —FKR-_ZT-FF
+-A=+—HILFEE 4%
B AT NETAME FEME
EEAMAAREBSEIMAKRSE
B 2R - SKIERBER 2

=)
g o

AERESHFMAL

BE_ZT-_—F+-A=+—
BLEFE AKELEHESFH
MALBER=R(ZF_FF:
ZR)EF EMEEHRN EX
M@z A - 2 REN

BIMEG(ZE_ZF  WA)

BEEFHMALZBMENT

2021 2020

—E-—% T TH

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T P T IT

2,078

70

2,148
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13. DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS AND 13. FEFH M4 N2 B oA
FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS + (48)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Continued) (b) EEESHMAL(E)
The emoluments of this remaining two (2020: two) BRTIMEBE(ZZE_ZTFE - WE)
highest paid individual fell within the following bands: SEEFMALTZBHMENFUT
#HE

Number of individuals

Emolument bands i <& €6 [E]

Nil — HK$1,000,000 T2 % %1,000,0007T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 78 #1,000,001 T2
71,500,000

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 7 #1,500,001 TE
7 #2,000,0007T
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  14. ¥ - Wfs Mkt

Right-of-use assets
EREEE
Ownedassets ~ Under lease arrangement
BEEE HEZHT
Other Furniture,
Leasehold properties fixtures
[and and |eased for Motor Leasehold and office Motor
buildings 0Wn Use vehicles improvements  equipment vehicle Total
A
BETHR HENH BENE  ERRER
Be EREMhE HE 25 BOERE & it
HK§'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK§000 HK§000
EETTL BT BETTL EETT BT BETTL EETTL
Yearended 31 December 2020  EE-F-EET-A=t-RLEE
Opening net carrying amount HETFE 223,000 7,088 - 1032 979 - 232,099
Effect of lease modification HEbnye - 37% - - - - 37%
Additions HE - 13,361 - 269 14 - 13,734
Write-off s - - - - ] - ]
Depreciation g (1,201) (7.084) - (531) (264) - (9,080)
Closing net carrying amount REMTE 21,799 17,350 - 770 823 - 20,742
At 31 December 2020 WZERETZACA
Cost g 23962 28,501 141 3,904 4280 79 261,589
Accumulated depreciation ZiffE 2,163 (11,187) (141) (3,134) (3,407 (799) (20,847)
Net carying amount ElEE 221,799 17,350 - mn 823 - 240,742

Year ended 31 December 2021

BE-EC-E{ZR=T-ALER

Opening net carrying amount BIEARE 221,199 17,350 240,742
Effect of lease modification fighinge - (693) (693)
Additions HE - - 5
Depreciation fE (1,201) (8,224) (10,272)
Impairment (note (c) HE(KE() - (3,389) (3.369)
Closing net carrying amount SREARE 220,598 5,050 206,46
At 31 December 2021 R-B--E+Zf=t1-1
Cost it 223,962 21,814 3,904 4,306 260,922
Accumulated depreciationand ~ EifFEREE

impairment (3,364) (22,764) (3,710) (3,702) (34,476)
Net carrying amount EEEE 220,59 5,050 194 604 226,446




for the year ended 31 December 2021

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

The analysis of the net book value of right-of-use assets by class of
underlying asset is as follows:

14.

B3E -

(@)

Ownership interests in leasehold land and

buildings, carried at depreciated cost with HET I RIEFHHEEEER -
remaining lease term of:

— Over 50 years —BiB504F

— Between 10 and 50 years —10F 250K

Other properties leased for own use,
carried at depreciated cost

R EVES

BITERAFIRRBATHZ

BITERARZHENEERZ

As at 31 December 2021, leasehold land and buildings with net carrying
amount of HK$215,597,000 (2020: HK$216,599,000) was pledged to
secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further detailed in
note 26(c).

At the end of the reporting period, the directors review the Group’s
property, plant and equipment to determine whether impairment
indications existed. When indicators of impairment are identified, the
directors assess the recoverable amount of those assets. For the
purpose of impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment,
each of the operating segments as disclosed in note 6 or each individual
hostel premise is identified as a separate cash-generating unit (‘CGU”).
Corporate assets are allocated to each of the CGU and included as part
of the carrying amounts of the CGU for comparing to their recoverable
amounts.

As a result of the prolonged COVID-19 pandemic which has impacted
the Group’s hospitality services, the recoverable amount of hostel
premises of HK$5,050,000 was less than the carrying amount of
HK$8,433,000 included in other properties leased for own use under
right-of-use assets as of 31 December 2021. Accordingly, impairment
loss of HK$3,383,000 in respect of right-of-use assets for one of the
hostel premises was recognised in in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss during the year ended 31 December 2021.

) FRAF - SE AR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

L5 A B R 3R M 5

- BE-F- 1A=+ ALFE

71 &AJL{%H *T‘J—'ﬁ

REBEEENESNEREEERE
FEDTT

2021 2020

—g=—F —ETF

HK$’000 HK$’'000

BETT BT T

215,597 216,599

5,001 5,200

17,350

225,648 239,149

R_ZZEZ—F+=ZA=+—8 " E@F
BEAB 215,597,000 ( — T =T F :
7 216,599,000 7T ) K F & + i R iE
FEERAR FAEENRITRE ZE
IR E— B EHIE RN HIF26(c) °

RBEPR  EFFHAEEOYE -
BEREBANEEREFERELR
RBBIREDTRE  EFTEREEE

ZPAIEI S o B BEREREZ
HEFEME - RHEEARENS %L

DEWREE —IREWEERR BE—
CEEBM([REEEBEM]) - m%ﬁ
EDAREERESELEN - WIHER
SELSBEMBREEN D - ALLBRE
AU E &

AR COVID-19KRITMIFEE HAE
EWIRE R ARG ERTE  R=F
T+ R=+—8  REWEZT
Uy [6] 4 E8 7 5 5,050,000 7T K 7 {F F3 4
BEEBTHEUNHERZEMYENR
T {8 75 1 8,433,000 7T ° F i » H—
EiRtEMEZFEREEERBERBBE
3,383,000 EREE-_T-—F+_4
=t BIEFENGEBRRAER -
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. W2 BB Moakt (48)
(CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued) BEE (&)

() (Continued) () (&)

The recoverable amounts are determined based on value-in-use
calculations, which comprise cash flow projections of each of these
CGU prepared based on the financial budgets approved by the
management. The period covered by the financial budgets is 1 to 2
years. The key assumptions used by the management in the value-
in-use calculations of the CGU include (i) sales growth rates ranged
from 4% to 22%; (i) gross profit margin is maintained at similar level as
have achieved during the current year; and (jii) pre-tax discount rate of
10.1%.

These assumptions were determined based on past performance and
management’s expectations in respect of the market conditions as well
as the economy and political changes which have impact on the CGU
results. In addition, to mitigate the deviation of the projected financial
performance resulting from the uncertainties about future events and
the prolonged effects of COVID-19 pandemic, the management has

AhEENREFEABEETEmE
o RESReEAEMNRIEEIREL
ENMBBEMEENESRETEA -
MHEEMRENHRR A —EMEF « £
BERReEEENZEREETEM
BZEFEREBRE  ((BEERENT
4%%22% ; (i) EFE LR EARFEAE
BRI R (iBRBLRTAE R E10.1% ©

ZEBROCREBEBEREUREEE
HRSEABUEEEMTZENT RN
MEERBAZE(ZERMERE It
SN AERERMERRREEOTEEM
KCOVID-19K TR RS E R 2 M E
MR EREZRE ﬁi@@ﬁé?ﬁiiﬁu

FRHEHREREZBEESR
EERNBHEMEBRER FEFHZ%
BRI AR KRR B R E LB AP
BREBRITENRTERR ©

considered multiple scenarios in projecting the revenue during the
forecast period, each of which are probability weighted. The pre-tax
discount rate used reflects the specific risks relate to the business and
industry in which this cash-generating units are engaged.

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. H&EYE
2021 2020
—E-— —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BEETIT
Fair value ATE
At 1 January n—H—H 130,100 130,100
Net change in fair value* N EZEFE 900 -
At 31 December HN+=—B=+—H 131,000 130,100
* disclosed as “Fair value gain on investment properties” in the * ERIREEEARARERZ [REMEZR

consolidated statement of comprehensive income. FEUE JHE -



Notes:

for the year ended 31 December 2021

The Group’s investment properties are measured using a fair value
model and are leased to third parties under leases to earn rental
income, further details of which are set out in note 33(b).

The Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December
2021 and 2020 by RAVIA Global Appraisal Advisory Limited,
independent qualified professional valuers, on an open market, existing
use basis.

The fair value measurement of the Group’s investment properties has
been categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as defined
in HKFRS 13 Fair value measurement. All of the fair values of the
investment properties at the end of the reporting period are level 3
recurring fair value measurement, which uses significant unobservable
inputs in arriving at the fair values. There is no transfer between level 1
and level 2, or transfers into or out of level 3 during the current year or
in prior year.

Fair values as at 31 December 2021 and 2020 are determined using
direct comparison approach. Fair values are based on recent market
information about prices for comparable properties with significant
adjustments for any differences in the characteristics of the Group’s
properties.
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Notes: (Continued)

(d)

(Continued)

HE—T-—F+=-A=+—HIFE

Details about the valuation inputs are as follows:

MiaE (&)

(d) (%)

HEGABRZFHEHIINT

Unobservable inputs

TABERAHE

Range of
unobservable inputs

FTABERABE 2 HEE

Valuation
Properties Location Level technique
L/ES B B fh{E A
Residential Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison
properties approach
FEWE HE 3 HELEBUE
A retail shop Hong Kong 3 Direct comparison
approach
—HZEE B/E 3 HELBUE
A retail shop Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
—HZTEE JRPT 3 HELBOE
Office premises Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
WREYE R 3 HELBOE
Residential property  Macau 3 Direct comparison
approach
EEWHE R 3 BELBOL

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

WOREZREHENEEE

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HMEERRSHEN R H(E

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

HYEER RS HETRH(E

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

BRIESEEISESS LN ir Vi L

Discount/Premium on quality and
characteristics of properties

FEE R RS EETR 6 (E

-5% to 5%
(2020:-5% to 5%)
B%EE%(ZT T
5%ZE5%)

-40% to 0%
(2020: -5% to 30%)
S40%E0W%(ZT T F -
-5%ZE30%)

0% to 30%
(2020: 0% to 15%)
0%ZE30% (=T =FF :
0%ZE15%)

-15% to 0%
(2020: -15% to 0%)
5% E0R(ZE=TF -
-15%Z0%)

-5% to 15%
(2020: -5% to 10%)
BU%E15%( B -TF :

-5%ZE10%)

Higher premiums or discounts for differences in the quality and
characteristics of the Group’s properties and the comparables would
result in correspondingly higher or lower fair values.

The fair value measurement is based on the highest and best use of the
investment properties, which does not differ from their actual use.

As at 31 December 2021, certain investment properties with carrying
amount of approximately HK$44,800,000 (2020: HK$45,700,000) were
pledged to secure the banking facilities granted to the Group as further
detailed in note 26(c).

BRAERYERATLBENEZEZRE
BhE RPTEZ B 6 E ek & M E £
ERmRBIE 2 ATHE -

DT ATYIRE R E MR &SR
RIS  MRXERMALHER -

RZE-_—F+-_A=+—H  EEE
45 7E144,800,0000L( ZZE=FF /&
#45,700,00070) 2 & FIREMECKESR
REBEERRITEEZEF - BEE—
FEEBHEHIN M E26(0)
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16. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 16. F&-PERFA A 2 T A
THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE Z W E A
INCOME

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Listed equity investments in Hong Kong, MR&EHZ FHREAKRE  &BA

at fair value FE 4,446
Financial assets at FVOCI represents listed equity investments BAFEFAEMEARAZTBE
in Hong Kong, which are held for long-term and are non- EEERHFEEEEIEENEZIRE
trading in nature. Bz ETRARE -

Fair values of these listed equity investments have been ZELMBRAEEZAFEE FiT
measured as described in note 36.1(iv). 2 FEBERNMIEES6.1(V)
17. INVENTORIES 17. f+&

2021 2020

—E-—F —ETF

HK$°000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Consumable stocks ARAEE 139 83
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in BEB¥E825000 L ( T T F ¢
cost of sales for the year ended 31 December 2021 amounted BH815,000T) T EMAHER B
to HK$825,000 (2020: HK$815,000). MY WHARE-_T-—%+-A8

=t HLEFEZHEMRAN -
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18. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 18.

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT BETIT

Listed equity investments held for trading, H{EE&E 2 FHIRRIKRE -

at fair value BAFE

69,946

Financial assets at FVTPL represents listed equity investments
held for trading, at fair value.

The fair value of the listed equity investments have been
measured as described in note 36.1(iv).

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 19.
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

BAFEFABRS M BEERERR
FEFEFMMFEEZ EMRARKRE -

FTHARARENANFEDZWE
36.1(iv)FTiltst = -

#&ﬁmﬁw%m e 4
/>2 TH hL A IH

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BETT

Trade receivables & EER SR
Other receivables, deposits and H b U BR TR
prepayments & RIERIR

158 123

4,831 8,054

4,989 8,177

In general, no credit period is granted for its customers due to
the Group’s business nature.

—EmE  AAKENEHKEE  #§
BRAAKBEPERLEEN -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 19. EF¥ N HMBEWRIER -~ #%4%
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS &Ti”ﬂ%é@ﬁ(fﬁ”
(CONTINUED)
The ageing analysis (based on invoice date) of the trade RE|EIR - EERUERR(NREE
receivables, net of loss allowance, at the end of the reporting BE) 2R DT RBEZEEE) T ¢
period is as follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$’000
AT T BT
0-30 days 0&30H 1
31-60 days 31£260H -
61-90 days 61290H 10
More than 90 days %90H 112
123
No loss allowance was provided for the year ended 31 HARBEESEBRHATEEERLE
December 2021 (2020: nil) as there has not been a significant BEARE B E_T_—F+_H
change in credit quality based on historical experience. The =t —HULEFETETIREERE (=
Group determined that there were no significant financial E-TF E) AEBEFREER
impact arising from expected credit losses model under EMEREZTANZSRIET BT
HKFRS 9 for trade and other receivables and deposits. The WMEERFIR THEHEEEEREN
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances. WHEKEAMBHE - NEBWLE
MZEERTEEAERD -
AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO 20. FEEAST FF 12 B RE 25 3IA

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and no fixed
term of repayment.

ZEMFEREER 2B RER
E
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Pledged bank deposits at the end of the reporting period
represent time deposits which are denominated in Renminbi
(“RMB”) with original maturity period of one month (2020:
one year). The deposits earn interest at fixed rates ranging
from 2.00% to 2.12% per annum (2020: 2.20% to 2.60% per
annum) and have been pledged to secure certain banking
facilities granted by a bank (note 26(c)).

Cash and bank balances include the following:

RBEMRZEEBRITER 18
UMARE(TAREDFEZEHT
FoRAEFPERA—EA(ZE=ZE
F—F) ZEFFENTF2.00%E
212%(ZZFE_FTF  2.20%E2.60%)
WMEFTEMEEDFE  WEFIK
B LRSS —MERTREZE TR
A& (Mf3E26(c)) °

RE RRITHEBERATEE

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT

6,998 23,964
20,598 2,361

Cash at bank and in hand RITRFEBES
Short-term bank deposits HERITER
Cash and bank balances He MIRTTAS

27,596 26,325

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily
bank deposits rates. Short-term time deposits are made for
periods depending on the immediate cash requirements of
the Group, and earn interest at the respective short-term time
deposit rates. The directors consider that the fair values of
the short-term deposits are not materially different from their
carrying amounts because of the short maturity period.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had short-term time
deposit amounting to RMB16,837,000 (2020: RMB1,990,000),
which had original maturity of one month (2020: three months)
and earned interest income at interest rate at 2.00% (2020:
2.35%) per annum. The amount of short-term time deposit as
of 31 December 2021 and 2020 were included in “cash and
bank balances”.

At the end of the reporting period, cash and bank balances
denominated in RMB amounted to HK$20,621,000 (2020:
HK$2,383,000).

RITHRSRBARITERNENES
MERGFE - BEEHMER2HAR - T
BIAEEZANRESTRKME - &
BRI I A EBREFLE o B
REGFERNEEANEE  WEER
HAVEERABETEEREZR -

R—ZZE-_—F+=-_RA=+—80"
AEBHNEHPTHERAARE
16,837,000t (ZE =T F . AR
1,990,0007T) ' REIRA—@A(=ZF
:%i':ME>&ﬂ§WA$¢ﬂ”
200% (=T -FF 1 2.35% )51 & -
ng:—¢&f7f7¢+ A
—t—H BHTHEREESHR
& MERTTAERR] o

RBERR  UARBFEZRER
IR1THS 42 A8 20,621,000 (= F =
T4 ¢ %2 383,0007T) ©
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23. TRADE PAYABLES 23. EEMEATIRR
At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis (based RIREEAR  NEB L EENER
on invoice date) of the Group’s trade payables is as follows: ZERSMRBZEENT -
2021 2020
—E-—F —E_TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT TT
0-30 days 0%30H 187 139
31-60 days 31260H 72 50
189
24. AMOUNT DUE TO A SHAREHOLDER 24. JEAFBCHR A
The amount due is unsecured, interest-free and no fixed term BHEFEREERR REREETEE
of repayment. HAR o
25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 25. BHIALE
The Group has recognised the follow liabilities related to AEBEBRUTEHEFANEH
contracts with customers: afE:
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETHF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contract liabilities arising from: EHEBERE:
Hospitality services R JE R SR AR 7 45
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25. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The movement in contract liabilities is as follows:

D5, AXfEfE (48)
AHABHEHNT :

2021 2020

—B-—fF —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000

BT T BT T

At 1 January n—H—H 45 450

Revenue recognised during the year FRERN S (450)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of I,?dzmﬁé& R AR IS TE UL R

billing in advance of hospitality services BYRAKHABEEM 45

At 31 December W+=—A=+—H 45

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of contract
liabilities are as follows:

Property project management

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and payment is generally due upon from the
date of billing. The Group’s property management contracts
include payment schedules which require stage payments over
the construction period once milestones are reached. When
discrepancies arise between the milestone payments and
the Group’s assessment of the stage of completion, contract
liabilities can arise.

Hospitality services

The performance obligation is satisfied over time as services
are rendered and advances are normally required before
rendering services. Hospitality service contracts are for periods
of one year or less, or are billed based on the time incurred.

TEANABSR RGN

YRR EE

BABEEREERREERMEEER -

NFREEERAEE R
@W%%MﬁA%@%ﬁ
HEERK—BERKBRR

FIEf o N&E
H%F'EJ%%
ERET

HAR 0 BRAS K ﬁﬂi&ﬁ%‘iﬁ RIS
BEERERNFHEZEEREZR

ATeEELERNERE -

BB B TR A AR A%

BHEMEREEREHERMER - 3%
BEENEHRBAEERN - K&
EFERBEO/RB—FHAT - A

BRELREKE -
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26. BANK BORROWINGS (SECURED) 26. SRATIEE (A #KHH)
2021 2020
HK$’000 HK$ OOO
BETT BEETIT
Current liabilities REBEE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment ZBR—ERNEEZIRITER Y
within one year 28 157,719 157,706

Portion of bank loans due for repayment B8R EREIZ KIS BR—
after one year which contain a repayment & EE ZIRITER 2D

on demand clause 35,934 38,100
193,653 195,806
Non-current liabilities FRBEE
Bank loans due for repayment after BAR—FEREEZIRITER
one year 8,130 8,565
201,783 204,371
The bank borrowings are carried at amortised cost. None of RITIEERBHEXRY R - HEES
the portion of bank loans due for repayment after one year REREEEFI(MRALDEAREE
which contain a repayment on demand clause (and therefore B)ZEN—FHREBEZIRITERIEY
classified as current liability) is expected to be settled within FBEABR —FERNEE -

one year.
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26. BANK BORROWINGS

(SECURED)

(CONTINUED)
The analysis of the Group’s bank borrowings by scheduled
repayment is as follows:

\

T E AR (

‘EEF

RNEMZIRITEERTEEEZBHE
T2

Portion of bank loans due for repayment

within one year ZiIS

~
7]

Portion of bank loans due for repayment A —E & F|EREE Y R1TE R

after one year (note (a)) s

7 (HfiE(a))

After 1 year but within 2 years —FREMENRN
After 2 years but within 5 years MERBERFA
After 5 years hFi&

MEBEEIR 2 |RITER

Notes:

(a)

The amounts due are based on the scheduled repayment dates set
out in the loan agreements and ignore the effect of any repayment on
demand clause.

The Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting period,
all denominated in HK$, bear interest at Hong Kong Interbank Offered
Rate (“HIBOR”) plus 1.0% to 1.4% or prime rate minus 2.95% to 3.00%
per annum. The interest rates of the Group’s bank borrowings as at 31
December 2021 ranged from 1.20% to 2.25% (2020: 1.28% to 2.25%)
per annum.

The Group’s bank borrowings and banking facilities are secured by its
certain property, plant and equipment, certain investment properties
and certain bank deposits with carrying amounts of approximately
HK$215,597,000 (2020: HK$216,599,000), HK$44,800,000 (2020:
HK$45,700,000) and HK$80,989,000 (2020: HK$92,469,000)
respectively, also corporate guarantee given by the Company to the
extent of HK$201,783,000 (2020: HK$204,371,000).

B3

(@)

2021 2020
—E-— —E-THF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
157,719 157,706
2,611 2,599
33,389 35,353
8,064 8,713
201,783 204,371

-

%
J

S HB TR IR BT 2 3T
108 B R B B REHE MR E R 8
R -

[t

RIRERAR - AEEZRITEE(BUE
¥HE) - DRIRBEARITRERS(E
BIRTTRERE D) MEB1.0%E1.4%
IR HE B EFF £2.95% F3.00%
TR cRZF—F+=ZA=+—8"
AEEBZRITEBEFHNENT1.20%E
2.25% (=T ZTF 1 1.28%%2.25%) °

AEBZRITEBERRITBRETIUE
BREED %M%ﬁ%mssgmooﬁ(:
T T F B ¥216,599,0007T )

® 44,800,000 L (Z T =T F ¢ fﬁz
45,700,0007T ) 2 7 # 80,989,000t ( =
T T F 892,469,000t ) 2 A T
ME - -BEREE ETREVERE
FRITEFER - URARRMELRZ LR A
751£201,783,0007C ( Z T T F « B
204,371,0007T ) Z 2 RIEARVEHL 1 o
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27. PRIEHIIA
Details of the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised and AREBNRNAFENBAFEERAZIE
their movements during the current and prior years are as ERBEE,/ (AB)REEFH2FHE
follows: AN
Impairment Fair value
Accelerated loss on changes of
tax right-of-use Tax investment
depreciation assets losses  properties Total
EREEE REME
RHIBHE RESR BERR <ZAVEED CHI
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT BETT BB BT BETT
At 1 January 2020 W_E-FF—-f—H (3,690) - 2,064 (2,624) (4,250)
Charged to profit or loss REEP R
(note 9) GED) (338) - (2,064) - (2,402)

At 31 December 2020 and m;z;zﬁ A=+-H

1 January 2021 —fF-H (4,028)
Credited/(Charged) to ﬁ)\?ﬁm/ REZEF (R Z

profit or loss (note 9) HE(MF)
At 31 December 2021 RZZE--F+ZA=1+-H (4,028)

At 31 December 2021, the Group had tax losses of
approximately HK$351,098,000 (2020: HK$337,202,000) which
is available for offset against future profit. Under current tax
legislation, the tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset was recognised in respect of these tax losses
due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

558

558

(2,624) (6,652)

(60) 498

(2,684) (6,154)

R-BE-—F+-_A=+—01 K&
B MIEEIE 4 A ¥351,098,0007T
— T T4 H#E337,202,0007T)
A B R BOE ) o B R AR B BRI R 2K
HHRRR MY AERELEHRAE
E-oREBMZHEBEAN  HIEESIE
AJ4ERR A4S o
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27. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Represented by:
Deferred tax assets
Deferred tax liabilities

28. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021

27. ARIEFLIA ()
2021 2020
—E-—F ZETF
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BETIT
HRK -
BIERIAE B 558 -
ELEFIRAE (6,712) (6,652)
(6,154) (6,652)
28. A
Ordinary shares of
HK$0.2 each
EREERE2TZEER
Number of Nominal value
shares HK$°000
ROHBE HEBETT
ERE

RZF_FTHF—A—RB =%
T = =
TZ—F+ZA=+—8H

2,000,000,000

400,000

Issue and fully paid:
At 1 January 2020, 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2021

BERITRAR
RZEZEF—H—H - =%
—EFE+ZA=t—BR=

EZ-—#H+-A=+—H 326,077,423
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A share option scheme (the “Existing Share Option Scheme”)
was adopted by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed
at the annual general meeting held on 22 May 2009 and 30
May 2019 for the primary purpose of providing incentives or
rewards to the participants who have contributed to the Group
and encouraging participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and its shareholders as a whole. Upon the expiry of
the Existing Share Option Scheme on 21 May 2019, no further
option can be offered thereunder but any options granted prior
to such expiry but not yet exercised shall continue to be valid
and exercisable. A new share option scheme (the “New Share
Option Scheme”) was adopted by the Company pursuant to
a resolution passed at the annual general meeting held on 30
May 2019. Under the New Share Option Scheme, the board of
directors may, at its discretion, offer to directors, employees of
any member of the Group, any advisors and service providers
of any member of the Group, options to subscribe for shares
in the Company at a price not less than the highest of: (i)
the closing price of the shares of the Company on the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares on the Stock Exchange for the
five trading days immediately preceding the date of the grant
of the options; and (iii) the nominal value of a share. A nominal
consideration of HK$1 is payable on acceptance of the grant of
the options by each of the relevant grantees. The options vest
on the condition that the grantee is a participant of the New
Share Option Scheme from the date of options grant to the
commencement date of the exercisable period of the options
and the participant is not required to achieve any performance
targets before any share options granted under the New Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

RRABRBER-_ZETAFRAA -+
BR-ZZ-NAFREA=THETZR
RAFAS LBBZRBRFMBER
e ([REBRETE]) - %A
BAESE X2 B /MBI ER
HAKEFELERZ2REE - AR
B2EERRNRBREBR ZEEN
SHNRESARARLERN ZEE -
REBREFEAR_-_Z-NFRA
—t—HIH FEHBRUREERD
E BB AR - AR B EA AT IR
WARTTEE Z BB S BB MR T
T - ARBRBER_F-NAFRHA
ZSTHETZRREFAGLAEBY
TR B B IR AN R R A RT B ([ 3 B AL
AHED) - RIEBHBRESS  EF
SAMBRANEBREAKERRZE
= -REE UERAKEEAKERF
2 A0 R ) R R 75 £ 9 o B AR
UARBEARA RN - RBEKTER
TH=Fhz&mE  ()\ARABRNHR
BB E B R 3Tz Wmhi(E : (i)
BOREZRRLBREE BT AER
7 BB R AT FHRTE - Rk
MEE - FEEARARREZHR L
ZIERER - XEBITZREAR
B -BRhEZBRBGRERBEARARE
EEREANEBRETERRGRZ
ARIEH R - ARABHBRET
22BN MBEABEBEARBER
B R ET B9 2 AT (AT R R AT
ERTEREMEERZR -



146 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A% e T B R AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 « & - ZE - —4#+_-A=+—HIF/Z

29. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION 29. DI A 2w AE (48)
(CONTINUED)
Movements of the share options during the year and their RENERE 2 Z 8 R E NETF9T
weighted average exercise prices are as follows: BEMT :
Weighted
average
Number of exercise
options price
nrEEH
BREHE TEE
HK$
BT
Outstanding at 1 January 2020, RZE—TF—H—8 -
31 December 2020 and :%:%i‘l—_ A=+—8BkK
31 December 2021 B —5+-HA=+—H
M ARTT R 12,548,000
Exercisable at 1 January 2020, RZZEZEF—H—H -
31 December 2020 and —E-EF+-A=+—8kK
31 December 2021 —E_—F+-A=+—H
A {T{E 12,548,000
No share options were exercised during the years ended 31 ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁiﬁéﬁ\%@:ﬁt_ T —FK_-=F
December 2021 and 2020. —EF+ZA=+—BHIEFERET

f -



for the year ended 31 December 2021

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as
follows:

AL (RED) ARAF - —F - —FFER

A5 A BB R Mt AR

HE—_FT-——FF+-A=+—HIFE

RBERRZRITERBREZITEE
RATERT

Number of Exercise
options price Exercise period
BREHA THEE TEH
HKS$
BT
2021 and 2020
“E--FR-Z-EF
Granted on 14 Sept 2016 3,096,000 0.732 14 Sept 2016 — 13 Sept 2026
RZBE—RFENATHART —E-RFNATHEA
E2-E-XRXFNA+=H
Granted on 19 Sept 2017 3,096,000 0.698 19 Sept 2017 — 18 Sept 2027
RZZE—tFNLA+NARD —E—tFNATNE
E-T+FAATNAB
Granted on 3 Oct 2018 3,096,000 0.395 3 0ct 2018 — 2 Oct 2028
RZE-N\F+A=ZARHE E—N\F+H=H
i_z_A¢+ﬂ =]
Granted on 16 Oct 2019 3,260,000 0.250 16 Oct 2019 — 15 Oct 2029

—hFETA+TRBEERY

\—7

—ZE-AF+A+H
2T -NF+ATHH

The options outstanding as at 31 December 2021 had a
weighted average remaining contractual life of 6.3 years (2020:
7.3 years).

FOTEBERER-_ZE-_—F+=A
—t+—BZEFEHT A LG K
BB3F(ZE_FF : 7.3%F) o
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2020
—? —_— ? ﬁz
HK$ 000
BT

49,800

1,917
251,986
92,469
17,670

364,042

782
120,532
15,000

136,314

227,728

277,528

65,215
212,313

30. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 30. R/ w6 BBk L%
FINANCIAL POSITION
2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
Notes BT T
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENERE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHEB AT ZRE
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables and prepayments E{mﬂéuﬁzﬁﬁﬁy\&ﬁkﬁklﬁ 512
Amounts due from subsidiaries JFE AL B B m/\ 279,593
Pledged bank deposits B AIRITIFH 57,926
Cash and bank balances Re MIRTTH 8 21,096
359,127
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals E{ﬁﬁ’éﬁﬂﬁ%\&ﬁ%%%’\lﬁ 717
Amounts due to subsidiaries T B A 120,517
Amount due to a shareholder FEfT— %H&%m 15,000
136,234
Net current assets REBEEZFRE 222,893
Net assets EEEE 272,693
EQUITY R
Share capital R& 2 28 65,215
Reserves B 32 207,478
Total equity ERBE 272,693

On behalf of the directors

Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel
EHER
Director

EF

KEE=

Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania

KREAE
Director

EF

277,528
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As at 31 December 2021, the Company had direct and indirect RZE-_—F+_A=+—H AR
interests in the following subsidiaries: AEAETYMB AR zBEE MR ERE
iy
Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
LN Vg
a1 AR L 3tk B R R
AR LB EANER TRERRCEHE ERITRAFE 2B
Held directly:
BEERE:
Century Legend Investments British Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 63,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong US$0.01 each
iR EREBRAR RERAHES  BRLAA REBREREER BREEOIETZ 100%
63,000/ & i#%
Century Legend Management ~ Hong Kong, Provision of properties 1,000,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company management services in - HK$1,000,000
Hong Kong
iR EEERAA B BRRA REBREMEERRYE £%1,000,0007T2 100%
1,000,000 & %
Century Legend Entertainment  Biritish Virgin Islands, Investment holding in 1 ordinary share of US$1 100%
Limited limited liability company Hong Kong
M REREBRAT RBRAHS  BRAR  REBUBREER 1ELZ IR AR 100%
CL Property Investments Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding in 1 ordinary shares of HK$1 100%

limited liability company Hong Kong
HREXREBRAA BE ARDA REBRSREER BB ARG ER 100%
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
R B 3Lt B K% BER
AEIEL EANER TEEBRCEBE ERTRAFE 2B
Held indirectly:
BERE
Century Legend Finance Limited Hong Kong, Provision of commercial 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
limited liability company and personal loans in of HK$10,000,000
Hong Kong
HERRRMEBRAR BE ARDA REBRHEEFER 7#10,000,0007T.2 100%
AER 10,000,000 & Ak
Century Legend Strategic Hong Kong, Investment holding and 10,000,000 ordinary shares 100%
Investments Limited limited liability company trading securities in of HK$10,000,000;
Hong Kong 5,000,000 non-voting
deferred shares™ of
HK$5,000,000
R ERERE BE BRRA REBRHEEER 7#10,000,0007T.2 100%
ARRAE LAER 10,000,000 & AR :
7 15,000,0007T,2
5,000,000/ £ 4% R 1
B
EA Interior Contracting Limited  Hong Kong, Provision of interior 100 ordinary shares of 100%
limited liability company and property project HK$100
management service
EA Interior Contracting Limited ~ &% + B2 REZARYMFEEER EH1007T 2100/ EBR 100%
R
CL Entertainment Limited Hong Kong, Investment holding and 10,000 ordinary shares of 100%
limited liability company property investment in HK$10,000
Macau
HEREFR AT B ARRDA WEFIKERERERK  #%10,0007T2 10,0008 100%

NERE TRk
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e
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
AR B 3L B K BES
AR EH EANER TEXERREEHE ERTRAFE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BEEE  (8)
Headquarters Limited Hong Kong, Operation of a hair salon 150,000 ordinary shares of 58%
limited liability company under the brand name of  HK$3,827,496
“Headquarters” in
Hong Kong
BEERAR BE BRARA REBRE 713,827,496 T2 58%
[Headquarters | 150,000/ & i i
Century Legend Properties Hong Kong, Investment holding, 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
Limited limited liability company property investments and
trading securities in
Hong Kong
e EEMEBRATF B ARDA REBREFREER - BT ARG BR 100%
Simple Way Limited Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company
HEARNTE BE - BRAA TmeE BEITT ARG ER 100%
Max Rise Investments Limited ~ Hong Kong, Investment holding and 1 ordinary share of HK$1 100%
limited liability company property investments in
Hong Kong
BEREBRRAA B BRRA] REBREREZRRE B oIkEERk 100%
NERE
Hong Kong Macau Travel Hong Kong, Provision of travel agency 500,000 ordinary shares of 100%
Limited limited liability company services in Hong Kong HK$500,000
BRIKEAR AR &R ARRA REBRMRTILRTE  #%500,0007T2 100%

500,000/ & 1k
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
R B 3Lt B K% BER
AEIEL EANER TEEBRCEBE ERTRAFE 2B
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE (&)
Homy Group Plus Limited Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 10,000 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company Service HK$10,000
Homy Group Plus Limited BA BRRA RALIRIE R RS ##10,0007.2 70%
10,000 & &K
HRL Limited Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 Ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$100
HRL Limited BE ARDA RERERR B¥10070.2 1008k LBk 70%
Silver Billion Enterprises Hong Kong, Inactive 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
Limited (note) limited liability company
Silver Billion Enterprises Limited &7 * BREA TEex BT 2 1IRE AR 70%
(FsE)
Full Wave Development Hong Kong, Provision of hospitality 1 ordinary share of HK$1 70%
Limited (note) limited liability company Service
Full Wave Development Limited &5 * R A H RERE RFRE BT AR B 70%
(FizE)
HGNP One Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP One Limited BE ARDA FRIRERR gREEASITZ 70%

(M3E) 100R% & B



AL (SR ARAF

for the year ended 31 December 2021

e

A5 A BB R Mt AR

HE—_FT-——FF+-A=+—HIFE

Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
AR B 3L B K BES
AR EH EANER TEXERREEHE ERTRAFE ZBA
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE (&)
HGNP Plus Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Plus Limited (FizE) &R ARRA RAKSER BREEES 1T 70%
100 BRI
HGNP Three Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Three Limited (Fi#) BE - BRRA FARKSER BREEES 1T 70%
1008k & Ak
HGNP Four Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Four Limited (FitE) BE BRRA RARERR BREBEREIT 70%
1008k & Ak
HGNP Six Limited (note) Hong Kong, Holding of hostel license 100 ordinary share of 70%
limited liability company HK$1 each
HGNP Six Limited (FfizE) BE BRAA FRRERR BREEAS1TLZ 70%
100M% & Ak
Macau Mesquita Homy Inn Macau, Inactive Macau Pataca (‘MOP”) 42%
Limited limited liability company 25,000
RPIEBI R IRAL BF - AR TEER JRPTH (TR ])25,0007 42%
BRRE
Century Legend Properties Macau, Investment holding in MOP25,000 100%
(Macau) Limited limited liability company Macau
i E ORF) BF - AR RRFRERERR JRFI%25,0007T 100%

BRAA
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Percentage
of interest
Place of incorporation Principal activities and Particulars of held by the
Name of company and kind of legal entity place of operations issued capital Company
KD B
SER AR L it B K% BER
AEIEL EANER TEEBRCEBE ERTRAFE 2B
Held indirectly: (Continued)
BERE : (8)
CL San Kin Yip Property Macau, Property investments in -~ MOP25,000 100%
Investment Limited limited liability company Macau
HRMEENERE RFT - BRRA REFIRENERE JRF9#25,0007T 100%
BRAR]
CL MLO12 Property Investment  Macau, Property investments in -~ MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company Macau
tHEMLO12MERE BT BRRA REFIRENERE JRF9%25,0007T 100%
BARAT
CL Pawn, Watch & Jewellery Macau, Inactive MOP25,000 100%
Limited limited liability company
tEERERAE B BRAA Tmex RPI#25,0007T 100%
BRAF
* The non-voting deferred shares practically carry no rights to dividends * ERERELEROHER EEEERR

or to participate in any distribution in winding up. They carry no rights to B MEZSEFENER S EER -
FEEBEERTIARRAGES @ il

BEFMBRRAGRNERAS LIRS -

receive notice of or to attend or vote at any general meeting.

Note:  These subsidiaries were established or invested during the year ended MeE: %%

fBRRITREE-_T-_TF+=
31 December 2020. A -

AIEFERNRILEE -

MEMNBARNFERDBTETMER
BH(ZEZZTF E) o

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the
end of the year (2020: nil).
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Group

The amount of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Nature of the reserves is as follows:

(a)

(b)

(c)

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents:

(i) the difference between the nominal value of
share capital issued by the Company and the
nominal value of the share capital and the share
premium accounts of those companies forming
the Group pursuant to the group reorganisation
in 1993; and

(if) the reduction in issued share capital arising from
the cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of
HK$0.09 on each share of HK$0.1 in issue in
2001.

Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve comprises to the fair value gain on
transferred from self-occupied property to investment
property in 2012.

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income reserve

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve represents the cumulative net change in
the fair value of equity investment designated at FVOCI
under HKFRS 9 that are held at the end of the reporting
period.

AL (RE)ARAR - ZF - FFEH

A5 A BB R Mt AR

HE—_FT-——FF+-A=+—HIFE

AEE
AEERAEERBEFE L HER
EREDIRGARBEDEFIIR -

Bz MEENT -
(a) EXRfFE
REBE 2 EARGFEEE

(b)

(c)

(i) ARRAREHTHRAEE
HAKAEBZZER
ARBE-NAN=FKH
Bz AT E MR
mERCERE M

(i) M ERAERE #
TREARY  HZEET
—FEBTRNZ2ER
HEEA 0.1 70 B RS
#0.097T °

Bt
EREHEER -4
EEMERBERENEND
FAEM S -

BRAVEFAHMEEEA
ZHBEERE
BAFEFARMEREAZ
MBEERBERRE RS
BHEBMBRE L FRIA
TEERAFESARMER
WAz BHEREZ A FERG

NP

/A °©
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32. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 32. fetifh (%)
Group (Continued) REE(E)

(d) Share option reserve (d)
Share option reserve has been set up in accordance
with the accounting policy set out in note 3.17.

BRERE
R R A 1 2 AR R 223,17 A
B2 B HERT -

Company AT
Share
Share  Contributed option Accumulated

premium surplus reserve losses Total

R4 % ME ERRS BRERE RitEE &it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT

At 1 January 2020 RZZ-EF—-f—H 168,227 213,978 3,110 (159,650) 215,665
Loss for the year AEEER - - - (3,352) (3,352)

At 31 December 2020
and 1 January 2021
Loss for the year

rEEER

158,227

213,978

(163,002)

(4,835)

212,313
(4,835)

At 31 December 2021 R-B-_-£+-A=+-H 158,227 213,978 (167,837) 207,478
Contributed surplus of the Company represents: RARIZ BHERE
(i) the difference between the underlying net tangible (i) AR FTUEERT B A 7 <

BEREEFBREARRAR Lt
SEEARZCHTROEE

assets of the subsidiaries acquired by the Company and
the nominal value of the shares issued by the Company

at the time of the group reorganisation referred to ZEF R
above; and
(i) the reduction in issued share capital arising from the (ii) HBMERAER D BITRA

WA BT —FEETHR
2 B EES 0.1 7T EIRE
BE20.097T ©

cancelling of paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.09 on
each share of HK$0.1 in issue in 2001,
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33. LEASES 33. HE
(@) The Group as lessee (a) AEEEAREABA
Nature of leasing activities HEXKHE
The Group leases a number of properties in the Hong AEEREEHEZEAYE -
Kong, including office premises, hostel premises and BREELSENRAEME Ik
hair salon from which it operates. All the periodic rent is EMEREAZE - HBRME
fixed over the lease term. EHHESHAEE -
The Group also leased certain motor vehicles for which AEFETEEETFTAE - HHE
rental is fixed over the lease terms in prior years. RBEFENHRBABETE -
Lease liabilities HEAE
Other Motor
properties vehicles Total
Hityz RE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T ST IT
At 1 January 2020 RZZETF
—A—H 7,257 117 7,374
Additions NE 13,351 - 13,351
Effect of lease modification MEEHRZE 3,795 - 3,795
Interest expense (note 7) %UEKE@SE(WE?) 741 15 756
Lease payments AERE (6,406) (132) (6,538)
At 31 December 2020 and H-T T4
1 January 2021 +-A=+—HK
T
—A—H 18,738 18,738
Effect of lease modification FAE &z g2 (693) (693)

Interest expense (note 7)
Lease payments

M SR s (B aE7)

HEREA

At 31 December 2021

IS

=
=

:nJII
[

A

582
(8,812)

582
(8,812)

157



158 CENTURY LEGEND (HOLDINGS) LIMITED - ANNUAL REPORT 2021

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A% e T B R AR M AR

for the year ended 31 December 2021 « & - ZE - —4#+_-A=+—HIF/Z

33. LEASES (CONTINUED) 33. HEHE)
(a) The Group as lessee (Continued) (a) AEBEEREABAGE)
Lease liabilities (Continued) HEAE(E)

Future lease payments are due as follows:

ARBEENRBBBEROT -

Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
BEEENE FIE RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
AT T BT T BT T
As at 31 December 2021 RZ-ZT=-—4f
+=ZA=+—H
Within one year —FR
In the second to fifth year, S -FEZFHFER
inclusive (BEEMEBIEEA)
Minimum
lease Present
payments Interest value
REHRERE FLE RE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT BT
As at 31 December 2020 N-_TE-TF
+—-A=+—8
Within one year —FR 9,555 (620) 8,935
In the second to fifth year, FE_FEERFN
inclusive (EEMTRIETEAN) 10,051 (248) 9,803
19,606 (868) 18,738




33. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(b)
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The Group as lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note
15) under operating lease arrangements with leases
negotiated for terms ranging from one to four years
(2020: one to four years). At the end of the reporting
period, the Group had total future minimum lease
receivables under non-cancellable operating leases with
its tenants falling due as follows:

(b)

Within one year B —F
After one year but within two years  fBifa—F{E TR BMRF
After two years but within three years #BiBMEE B =

33. ME(&)

AEBEAHBAA
AEERBLEEHELTELA
HIGEWME(MZE15) HEZ
BENT—ZOF(ZE=_ZF
F L —EMF) c RREHK
RIREFE P TS 2 7~ Al 8 48
EHE AEETRUTFH
B ERAREEBERER
T

2021 2020
S el —*-F

HK$°000 HK$’000
BET T BT T

2,817 3,168
357 1,577
= 300

5,045
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34. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED 34. %GB =R
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: METHESANBEYHERNOT :
Amount
due to Bank Lease
a shareholder borrowings liabilities
Ef—%
BRRFIE BITEE HESE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT AETT BETT
(Note 24) (Note 26) (Note 33)
(FfizE24) (FizE26) (F3£33)
At 1 January 2020 —“E-FTF—-F—H - 205,937 7,374
Changes from cash flows: Rene#s :
Repayment of bank borrowings BERTEE - (1,566) -
Loan interest paid B EHFIE - (4,562) -
Capital element of lease payment MEMNFZEXRDMR - - (5,782)
Interest element of lease payment MERNFZFEH MR - - (756)
Advance from a shareholder KE—GREZBR 15,000 - -
Total changes from financing cash flows REBRSTREEHLE 15,000 (6,128) (6,538)
Other changes: Hiv &)
Increase in lease liabilities from entering HE -4
into new leases %ﬂhﬁﬁiﬁ” bl - - 13,351
Effect of lease modification HEBRyE - - 3,795
Interest expense (note 7) FEFZ (E7) - 4,562 756
At 31 December 2020 and ﬁé_:: $+ A E+ A
1 January 2021 —fFE— { 204,371
Changes from cash flows: ReMELE:
Repayment of bank borrowings EBRITIEE (2,588)
Loan interest paid BRERFS (2,735) =
Capital element of lease payment TﬁfaﬁmZﬁZFjﬁ n = (8,230)
Interest element of lease payment HEMF2FIE5H - (582)
Total changes from financing cash flows ~ BEREREEZE AR (5,323) (8,812)
Other changes: Hin &8 :
Effect of lease modification HEBHYE = (693)
Interest expense (note 7) FBFS (M) 2,735 582

At 31 December 2021 RZE--E+-R=1—H { 201,783 9,815
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. BA#E NG
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed RiZEVBBRREMEBEEZRS
elsewhere in these financial statements, the Group had the Mg FAREE REGEA T
following significant transactions with related parties during the HEITTIERRS :
year:
(a) Compensation of key management personnel (@) FEEBAEZHM
The directors are of the opinion that the key EEZERAE TEEEABAR
management personnel are the directors of the RAZESRETESHME
Company, details of whose emoluments are set out in g BEIZHLHBIANER
note 13(a), and certain highest paid employees whose MsE13(a) B M sE13(0) ©
remunerations are set out in note 13(b).
(b) Operating lease arrangements (b) KEHERH
2021 2020
—E-— —E-TF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Rental expenses for MATRRIZNAE L
a motor vehicle paid to HEeMX
— Smiley & Bee Limited —Smiley & Bee Limited 240
— Complex Investments Limited —BHERERE AT 216
Rental income received from MR B HE 2 & WA
— Po Lee Securities Limited —EFFEE5ER AT 850

161
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35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. B#EE AN+ 5 (4)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Others (c) EHftd
2021 2020
—E-—5 T
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT TT
Company secretary service B SINAGIE ¢
income received from NaElERFEA
- Po Lee Asset Management —BNEEEEARAA
Limited 5
- Po Lee Investment Consultant —ENREERER AT
Limited 5
- Po Lee Securities Limited —BNBESFBRAF 5
— Raise Success Limited —Raise Success Limited 52
Broker fee paid to A TRARS 2L E
- Po Lee Securities Limited —BINESFBRAA] 35

These arrangements are mutually agreed by the Group
and the contracting parties.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the benéficial
shareholder and director of Smiley & Bee Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
shareholder and director of Complex Investments
Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel and Ms. Chu Ming Tak
Evans Tania, directors, are the directors of Po Lee
Securities Limited.

Mr. Tsang Chiu Mo Samuel, director, is the beneficial
trustee and director of Raise Success Limited.

Ms. Chu Ming Tak Evans Tania, director, is the director
of Po Lee Asset Management Limited and Po Lee
Investment Consultant Limited.

RETHEAKRERAHNTE
TRERERE

EEYMR LA ASmiley & Bee
LimitedZ BB R NESE -

EXEEMALEREBERE
ERABZEmBERIES -

ExCHREERKRARLL
RENESBERARICES -

ZEF 2B A LA A Rase
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The Group is exposed to a variety of financial risks, mainly
market risk (including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk
and equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s
overall risk management focuses on unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on
the Group’s financial performance. The risks associated with
these financial instruments and the policies applied by the
Group to mitigate these risks are set out below. The Group
currently does not have written risk management policies and
guidelines. However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to analyse and
formulate strategies to manage and monitor financial risks
exposures in a timely and effective manner.

36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and liabilities recognised at the end of the reporting
period are categorised as follows. See note 3.11
for explanations on how the category of financial
instruments affects their subsequent measurement.

AEBAREZEVGRR T2/
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36.
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)
(i) Financial assets

B 155 R Bt 4 B SN B R =

)

INI=

—

36.1 MIBEEREEZER (H)

(i) HBEE

2021
—E-—F
HK$’000
BET T

Financial assets at FVOCI BAFEAEMEE
WA B 75 & B
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFTAERZ
B & E
Financial assets measured at REERATTEZ
amortised cost BB EE
— Trade and other receivables and —#& % R H MR
deposits IR R e
— Amount due from non-controlling  — fEUIEIE B AE =S
interest IE
- Pledged bank deposits — BRI K
— Cash and bank balances — & RIBTTER

4,312

10
80,989
27,596

188,378

(ii) Financial liabilities

(i) HBEE

2021
—E_—F
HK$’000
BT T

Financial liabilities measured at X # K AT E 2T B EE

amortised cost

- Trade and other payables — T H 4 EERR 5,251
— Amount due to non- — FEAH IR i i 25 F0E

controlling interest
— Amount due to a shareholder — B — &R K18
— Lease liabilities —-HEAE
— Bank borrowings (secured) —RITIEE (HIEKT)

15,000
9,815
201,783

231,849

2020
—E-TE

—_—= =

HK$’000
BETIT

4,446

69,946

7,637

10
92,469
26,325

200,733

2020
—E-FF
HK$’'000
BT T

5,245

2
15,000
18,738

204,371

243,356



for the year ended 31 December 2021

36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iii)

Financial instruments not measured at
fair value

Financial instruments not measured at fair
value include trade and other receivables
and deposits, balances with non-controlling
interests, pledged bank deposits, cash and bank
balances, trade and other payables, amount
due to a shareholder, lease liabilities and bank
borrowings.

Due to their short term nature, the carrying
values of these financial instruments except for
non-current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
approximate their fair values.

For disclosure purpose, the fair values of non-
current lease liabilities and bank borrowings
are not materially different from their carrying
values. The fair value has been determined using
discounted cash flow model and is classified
as level 3 in the fair value hierarchy. Significant
inputs include expected future cash flows and
discount rate used to reflect the credit risk of the
Group.
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36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair

value

The fair value of financial assets at FVOCI and
financial assets at FVTPL with standard terms
and conditions and traded on active liquid
markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices which is classified as level 1
financial instruments.

There are no level 2 and level 3 financial
instruments during the year.

The following table provides an analysis of
financial instruments carried at fair value by level
of fair value hierarchy:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets and
liabilities;

- Level 2: inputs other than quoted
prices included within Level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e.
derived from prices); and

- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that
are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs).

36.1

MHEEREBZER(E)

(iv)

BEAFEFEZzSHE

TR

B 54 2 R SR R A 1
WRERBRBHIER S
Wz AFEFAEMS
EUWAZ T EEERE
RTPEFABEZHHE
BEZRATE 2%
mEHREEE  wHHE
BREIESHIA-

FR - BEF2BENES
ELmIT A -

TREHZAFEIER
ZEMIAZ M (IRE
NTERREID)

- B1E:MHREE
REBERERT
152 wE(RER

)

-  F2E EEH
BEMERZ(BE
%) s (Bl
BT AT ER
ZBA(TBES
1EMBEZR
&) &

—  B3E : AERE
ABRZMEH
BeEREESL
BEzBAEZX
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. AR R S NN EEE
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%8)
(CONTINUED)
36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities 36.1 MKEERABEZERE)
(Continued)
(iv) Financial instruments measured at fair (ivy RAFEFEZEH
value (Continued) IE(E)
The financial assets measured at fair value in the RER BB IEIR R R AN
consolidated statement of financial position are NFEFEZHEEE
grouped into the fair value hierarchy as follows: ThE D RATZRFE
Bk
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1E E2E E3E st

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AETTT BRETT AR BT

As 31 December 2021 R=-B=—&
t=A=+-H

Financial assets at FVTPL 1z AEEE AB%
ZIBEE

Financial assets at FVOCI 2 FET A
HizmEBA
CHUBEE

Net fair values FATE

As 31 December 2020 W-ZT_ZF

+=-A=+—H
Financial assets at FVTPL iz AEEE AB%

LHBEE 69,946 - - 69,946
Financial assets at FVOCI &2 F & A

Hiz2mEBA

ZHBEE 4,448 - - 4,446

Net fair values FATE 74,392 - - 74,392
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36.1 Categories of financial assets and liabilities
(Continued)

(iv)

Financial instruments measured at fair
value (Continued)

There have been no transfers between level 1
and level 2 in the reporting period.

The methods and valuation techniques used
for the purpose of measuring fair value are
unchanged compared to the previous reporting
periods.

The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL and
financial assets at FVOCI are listed equity
securities denominated in HKS$. Fair values have
been determined by reference to their quoted bid
prices at the end of the reporting period.

36.1

MHEEREBZER(E)

(iv)

BRAFEFEZSR
TEAE(E)

RmEERE - F1EHESE
2 Z MW EE o

REFERAFEERNT
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. BB R B E B A TEET =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (ff’:fi)
(CONTINUED)
36.2 Foreign currency risk

36.2 SMEEEBR

Currency risk refers to the risk that the fair value
or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange
rates. The Group’s exposures to currency risk arise
from its deposits placed in banks, which are primarily
denominated in HK$ and RMB as set out in notes
21 and 22. The Group have no other significant
foreign currency risk due to limited foreign currency
transactions as the Group mainly operate in Hong
Kong with majority of the business transactions being
denominated and settled in HKS.

Summary of exposure

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into HK$ at the closing rates, are as
follows:

SNERRIESMTIAZAFE
HAKRREREHAEREEF)

mE ez Rk o M 21
RooFTE - AKEZHINER
BEEREREFRRIRBITZ
TR CEFEUEBERARE
FHE - AR AEEXERERE
BIE REODBHEXSHHUE
BAERGEE  BINEXZS5E
PR B I 7 SR 8T A (A H
EARINER B ©

B B =
MINESH BB EERARE
R HEXRESBE 2BER

Pledged bank deposits EEBIRITIF
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTAE S

N
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
HK$°000 HK$’000
BT T BEETIT
80,989 92,469
20,621 2,383
101,610 94,852
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30.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

36.2 Foreign currency risk (Continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table illustrates the sensitivity of the
Group’s result and equity in regard to a 2.5% (2020:
2.5%) appreciation in the foreign currencies against
the Group entities’ functional currencies. The 2.5%
(2020: 2.5%) is the rate used when reporting foreign
currency risk internally to key management personnel
and represents management’s best assessment of the
possible change in foreign exchange rates.

The sensitivity analysis of the Group’s exposure
to foreign currency risk at the end of the reporting
period has been determined based on the assumed
percentage changes in foreign currency exchange rates
taking place at the beginning of the financial year and
held constant throughout the year.

B 1 T A R S AR

=3
(78

36.2 HhEEEBR(E)

BREDW
THREMAEBEERERT
NEHEEERIGEERAE
25%(ZF_FF :25%) 2
BREE - 25% (T _ZTF :
25%) AEERIHEEER
A B 2 WRIMNER B EATERZ
LbR - WAEEREHINEESR
Al ) v SAEMETEE o

REBRIRE B RE T 2 HMNE

[BL B 2 SRR AT TR R R B

BEERAREEERRFER

—Eﬁ%Z%%ETF““E
DLLETE o

Decrease in Decrease in

loss for loss for
the year and
accumulated

the year and
accumulated

2.5% (2020: 2.5%) appreciation in A REIHE2.5%

RMB —EFF 1 2.5%)

losses losses
FABER FABER
RBRRLD WG
2021 2020
—B-—f —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT
2,371

A 2.5% (2020: 2.5%) depreciation in the foreign
currencies against the Group entities’ functional
currencies would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

INEBR AR B BRI ERERZE2.5%

“EFHF 1 256%) BHAKEN

FEXELEDWREREZEERAR
LB -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
(CONTINUED)

36.3

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The
Group’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest
rates relates primarily to the Group’s bank borrowings
arranged in floating interest rates. The Group currently
does not have any interest rate hedging policy.
However, the directors monitor interest rate change
exposure and will consider hedging significant interest
rate change exposure should the need arise.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a
reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, of the Group’s result
and equity (through the impact on floating rate bank
borrowings).

36.

(f

A

5

J
NEL

V6 JEl o &

J
)

B FERE

36.3 FIXRER

Increase in basis points (“bp”)
+ 100 bp

EE (T2 ])IBIn+100E %

A decrease in 100 bp in the interest rates, with all
other variables held constant, would have the same
magnitude on the Group’s result for the year and equity
but of opposite effect.

FEARDEASBIAY A
TELRLREBETSFIE
BB 2 AR - 4% E 5
Yz RSB HISARETE
CEEN N PEEEEE27
RTIE B o A o E B A AT
ARIELSTE - AT - B F
ERFEEDER  LHER
HEREBEEATEED -

TRIVRR A M2 BRI
R AR IR AR A B
BIERT  ARBEZXERE
HCEBEFBHNERRITEEZ
FE)HEB R -

Increase in
loss for

the year and
accumulated

Increase in
loss for

the year and
accumulated

losses losses
FABER FREER
RETEEEN S gt
2021 2020
—B-—fF —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
2,044

A R A1 00 L B i A At 2 2R

A SHAKEELAFEZ
KEREDTRMERREEEM
[ReFE -
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36.4 Equity price risk 36.4 REEKRERK

Equity price risk relates to the risk that the fair values
of equity securities decrease as a result of changes in
the level of equity indices and the value of individual
securities. The Group is exposed to change in market
prices of listed equity securities in respect of its
investments in listed equity securities classified as
financial assets at FVOCI (note 16) and financial assets
at FVTPL (note 18).

The directors manage this exposure by maintaining a
portfolio of investments with different risk and return
profiles and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise. The Group is not exposed to
commodity price risk.

At 31 December 2021, if the quoted market price for
the financial assets at FVOCI had been 10% (2020:
10%) higher/lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s equity will increase/decrease by
approximately HK$503,000 (2020: HK$445,000).

Whereas, if the quoted market price for listed equity
securities classified as financial assets at FVTPL had
been 10% (2020: 10%) higher with all other variables
remain unchanged, the Group’s loss for the year and
accumulated losses would decrease by HK$7,045,000
(2020: HK$6,995,000). A 10% (2020: 10%) lower in the
quoted market price for listed equity securities classified
as financial assets at FVTPL, with all other variables
held constant, would have the same magnitude on the
Group’s result for the year and equity but of opposite
effect.

km A% R T R R B AR RE

DA R R R 5 BUKF R AE B
EFEBEEZH M 2R -
Kﬁllhﬁimkﬁ g5 (D
BREAFEFARMEEER
AZHBEE (KFE16) RIEA
FEAABZZMBEE (T
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EZFHE LR

ExgsTRARNMEREDN
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0w B E R E R
o AREHMEERYRMER
R o

R —F+-_A=+—
B BUOSEAEAFEEA
Hih2mEBRA 2815 E EFTiR
ZHELER/THI10% (==
TE 10%) - MATA EAMb & E
WERTE  BINEBZERSG
#0585 > 4975 #503,0007T °
(ZZT —ZT4F : ¥ 445,000
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36.5 Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause
a financial loss to the Group. The Group minimises its
exposure to the credit risk by rigorously selecting the
counterparties, performing ongoing credit evaluation
on the financial conditions of its debtors and tightly
monitoring the ageing of the receivables. Follow-
up actions are taken in case of overdue balances. In
particular for granting loans to customers, the directors
will initially assess the background and financial
position of each of the new and existing customers
and will request for collateral when necessary in order
to minimise credit risk. The directors will also review
regularly the repayment pattern of the customers.
Monitoring on credit risk of loans receivable is
performed by the directors on on-going basis.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs,
which is calculated using a simplified approach. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly
by the individual characteristics of each debtor. The
default risk of the industry and country in which debtors
operate also has an influence on credit risk but to a
lesser extent.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is primarily
attributable to its trade and other receivables, deposits
and amount due from non-controlling interest, pledged
bank deposits and bank balances. The maximum
exposure to credit risk in respect of the financial
instruments are their carrying values.
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36.5 Credit risk (Continued) 36.5 SERK(E)

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.
The Group considers a financial asset to be in
default when: (i) the debtor is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is
held); or (i) the financial asset is more than 90 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information to demonstrate that a more lagging default
criteria is more appropriate.

The Group measures loss allowance for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix by reference
to past default experience of the debtor and current
market condition in relation to each debtor’s exposure
and time value of money where appropriate. The ECLs
also incorporate forward looking information with
reference to general macroeconomic conditions that
may affect the liability of the debtors to settle the trade
receivables. Trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days
past due.

The Group has assessed that the expected loss rate
was not significant as at 31 December 2021 and 2020.
Accordingly, no loss allowance for trade receivables
was recognised.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to customers that have a good payment record
with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no impairment allowance is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has
not been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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36.6

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Credit risk (Continued)

In respect of other receivables, deposits and
amount due from non-controlling interest, the Group
considers the background and regularly monitors the
financial condition of the counterparties to assess
the recoverability of the outstanding balances. The
management does not expect any loss allowance from
non-performance by the counterparties and assessed
that the ECLs in respect of these balances were
immaterial at the end of the reporting period.

The credit risk on pledged bank deposits and cash
and bank balances is limited because majority of the
bank balances are deposited in reputable banks, for
which the Group consider to have low credit risk. There
was no history of default in relation to these financial
institutions.

The credit policy has been followed by the Group since
prior years and is considered to have been effective
in limiting the Group’s exposure to credit risk to a
desirable level.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with
its financial liabilities. In the management of liquidity
risk, the directors monitor and maintain a level of cash
and cash equivalents deemed adequate to finance
the Group’s operations, investment opportunities and
expected expansion. The Group finances its working
capital requirements mainly by the funds generated
from operations and investing activities.
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36. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. B R B E B A TEET =
AND FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (%)
(CONTINUED)
36.6 Liquidity risk (Continued) 36.6 MEBELEM(E)
At the end of the reporting period, the maturity profile REpEHIR REBENRAY
of the Group’s financial liabilities based on contractual RUARBERECHUBAED
undiscounted cash flows is as follows: BEERTIEHIT
Total
contractual Total
On Within In2to  More than undiscounted carrying
demand 1 year 5years 5years  cash flows amount
FHAEE

RER -£R ZEIf ARRF REREAR RAAH
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT BETT BETT ik w AR AT

At 31 December 2021 W-E--£+-f=+-f
Trade and other payables EERAMERESR - 5,251 5,251
Amount due to a shareholder Ef—%kEaE 15,000 15,000 15,000
Lease liabilities fHEafk - 10,051 9,815
Bank borrowings including those ~ ${TEE(RESEREX
contain a repayment ondemand  EBBRZHTEE)
clause (note) (Pst) 193,219 203,479 201,783
208,219 233,781 231.849
At 31 December 2020 RoE-EE+-F=1+-H
Trade and other payables EXREMERER - 5,245 - - 5,245 5,245
Amount due to non-controling  FE3ERRIER ZUE
interest 2 - - - 2 2
Amount due to a shareholder JEff—2RRE 15,000 - - - 15,000 15,000
Lease liabilties HEER - 9,555 10,051 - 19,606 18,738
Bank borrowings including those /758 (RS AREX
contain arepayment ondemand BB BT Z BTEE)
clause (note) (P3) 195,383 622 2,488 7,774 206,267 204,371
210,385 15,422 12,539 7,774 246,120 243,356
Note:  For bank loans which contain a repayment on demand clause Mz : HRHBEHETADEBRSITE
which can be exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the CIRERKEREBKERZBITE
analysis above shows the cash outflow based on the earliest o L AIRAEBATREA
period in which the Group can be required to pay, that is if B R HM(EMME 81T
the lenders were to invoke their unconditional rights to call the FHEEGENEREES

loans with immediate effect. BER)E2VNHAEREE -
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36.6 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summaries the maturity analysis
of bank loans with a repayment on demand clause
based on agreed scheduled repayments set out in
the loan agreements. The amounts include interest
payments computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the amounts
disclosed in the “on demand” time band in the maturity
analysis above. Taking into account the Group’s
financial position, the directors do not consider that it

36.6 REELEBR(E)

TR B I B 4% ESAEE R
ZRUTERZERBHEHTZ
ETEERBHZBHADAN -
ZETHRBREEAONXRGFE
ZREMK - ALt - ZFLH
REBB BB DR [1REK
EEINAEEAREZSH
R e B RASEZ BN
Ao BEERB/RITIAAIBETT

FERBEERNEER - &
EHEZFRITEFTHRER

is probable that the banks will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors believe

that such bank loans will be repaid in accordance with BEMEZETERBRES -
the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan
agreements.

Maturity analysis - bank loans subject to repayment
on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HERERRERS L RTERRECER B A NHE A

Total
contractual Total
Within In2to More than undiscounted carrying
1 year 5 years 5years cash outflows amount
RHRER
—ER —ZEE BBLE HeRELE REAE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AR ARTT AR BT AR

31 December 2021 “E--F+Zf=1-H 158,388 38,184 1,889 198,461 193,219

31 December 2020 ZEIRETZA=T-H 168,454 36,967 2,084 197,605 195,383
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The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(a) to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it continues to provide returns and

benefits for shareholders and other stakeholders;

(b) to support the Group’s stability and growth; and

(c) to provide capital for the purpose of strengthening the

Group’s risk management capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns that might be possible with higher levels
of borrowings and the advantages and security afforded by a
sound capital position, and makes adjustments to the capital

structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Management regards total equity as capital for capital
management purpose. The amount of capital as at 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately HK$308,280,000
(2020: HK$322,012,000), which the management considers
as satisfactory having considered the projected capital
expenditures and the forecast strategic investment

opportunities.

AEEEREAZBER

@ HREAKESELEZE
EHEESBRRREAMIENE
1k [m o B F) 2

b) IBHAKEZEBTEMEE K

© ANEBAKEZEAREEREN
REES -

AEBEER N TE Y EARBEETR
AMER NEBRSKFEETRE
AR SRR E R E R & RO K
MBS RREZ FHER FE - e
BN E S ERNRBIEHTRE

ERERESREAREAERZE
KeRA-_E-_—F+-_F=+—8H -
B ARG EE4) 575 8308,280,0007T (=
T T4 EHG22,012,0000T) 0 H
FEEEBEEEIERHZEARST R
TEHRBHERERE  URBERS
NREZ AR
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Investment Properties BEYE
Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
) {31 HE EEEE REBE B
Res-do-chao K Commercial Medium term 349 sq.ft. 100%
San Kin Yip Com. Center, leasehold
No.44,
Avenida de Lopo Sarmento de Carvalho,
EM Macau,
Macau
RPIBE RN ABBA4RITEERER UKD [HES hEATEE 349F AR 100%
P12-07, P12-08, P12-09 and P12-10B Commercial Medium term 8,110 sq.ft. 100%
Landmark, Alameda Dr. Carlos D’Assumpcao leasehold
NoS 565-605-C,
Rua De Xangai NoS 38-78-B,
Avenida da Amizade NoS 519-597,
Macau
RPIRFEA BB 25519-5975% - % RHIHE 8,110 R 100%
L§5%38-78-B
R E 4 1% % 565-605-CHF
SR E i EHP12-07 ~ P12-08 « P12-09 %
P12-10B
26 Andar T1/B, One Central Residences, Residential Medium term 1,359 sq.ft. 100%
EM Macau Avenida De Sagres N58, Macau leasehold
SEPIAEH K IS B 5855 = 5% B 152612 T1/BEE F=E HEITRE 1,359 5 R 100%
G/F of nos. 105-107 Wing Lok Street, Commercial Long term 615 sq.ft. 100%
Sheung Wan, leasehold
and the remaining Portion of Marine Lot
Nos. 135 and 136
EIROKEEA105-1075R N B MR FE 135 A% REIEE 615F AR 100%

F1365 R
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Percentage
of interest
attributable to
Description Use Nature Gross floor the Group
15 HE HE EEEE rEBEMN
Flat H, 20/F, Residential Long term 691 sq.ft. 100%
Heng Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 19 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
FERRBOBA LA R IIBE 1955 E=E REAAE 691 F 7R 100%
=S EILE20EHE
Flat B, 10/F, Residential Long term 902 sq.ft. 100%
Kai Tien Mansion, leasehold
Horizon Gardens,
No. 17 Taikoo Wan Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
BERBEOBRN LA LIEBI75R T=E REHEE 902F 1R 100%
BREBERMKRE10ZB=
Flat F, 23/F, Residential Long term 675 sq.ft. 100%
Loong Shan Mansion, leasehold
Kao Shan Terrace,
No. 21 Taikoo Shing Road,
Taikoo Shing, Quarry Bay,
Hong Kong
ERR SRS BA G E215E = REEE 675F R 100%

=L & B RI23IEFE
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